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Gross Profit Margin

Operating Profit Margin
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Notes FisE
Inventory turnover days = Gross inventory balance as at year end/(Cost of FEAEAS - FERFEEBRETE (FAMERK
sales for the year/365 days) A,365H)

Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Gross trade and bills
receivables balance as at year end/(Revenue for the year/365 days)

Trade payable turnover days= Gross trade payable balance as at year end/
(Cost of sales for the year/365 days)

R B S e L SR R 8 B B = 4 R R URBR SR R e L
SiRsESEE(FREESE 3658)

R IERUASE A = FREMRRAE (FTRHE
7,365 8)
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For the year ended
31 December (in HK$'000)

Revenue

Gross profit
Other income
Operating profit

Profit for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

EBITDA
Research and development expenses
(included in administrative expenses)

At 31 December (in HK$'000)

B8%Z+=-A=t—-H
EFE(FER)

EXRB
EH
HA

il

ARREDRHEA
FEIEFE R

EBITDA
g R

(BREETHERA)

R+=A=t+—R(F#&Rr)

492,942 +47%
192,860 +51%
10,479 +161%
100,512 +72%
84,551 +72%
102,435 +71%

(24,149) +45%

Total assets BERR 565,707 +166%
Total liabilities BEER 142,646 +53%
Total equity BmEE 423,061 +204%
Net current assets MBEEFE 413,668 +208%
Per share (in HKS$) BR(ER)
Earnings per share FRAEM
— Basic —ER 0.114 +70%
- Diluted -8 0.114 +70%
Financial ratios Bt =
Gross profit margin EME 39.1%
EBITDA margin EBITDA = 20.8%
Operating profit margin Ry ilped 20.4%
Net profit margin 0k ZAlNE bt 17.2%
Return on equity’ mpm 20.0%
Return on assets? BERR? 14.9%
Price/Earnings? (times) {B1%,/BF3 (f5) N/A i
Notes Koza
' Return on equity = Profit for the year/Equity as at year end | RO =FEERN S E RS
2 Return on assets = Profit for the year/Total assets as at year end 2 BERM=FERFEREELTE

3 Price/Earnings = Closing share price on the last trading day of the 3 B BN=EEREISAZERMOT
year/Earnings per share B/ SR&EF
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Products
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Countertop EFT-POS °
terminals - compact

type '
&3 EFT-POS ]
Rim— —8

S80

Accept magnetic strip cards and IC cards and support credit, debit and a full range of
pre-paid products, including gift cards and loyalty programs

Models: P80, P78, 580, P58, SP30-S, SP30-T, S78

AEREIGRRICK - UXEERK - B RRERIIBHNER - BEEmA R REH
EatEl

A5 : P8O~ P78~ S80 ~ P58 * SP30-S » SP30-T » S78

S78

SP30-S SP30-T

Countertop EFT-POS °
terminals -
detachable type

&= EFT-POS )
Rig—oRR

P60-51

Payment transaction data can be stored in the terminals for later retrieval and
forwarded for authorization and settlement. Generally used in the entertainment,
restaurants and hospitality segments

Models: P60-S1, S60-S, S60-T

AT XS R S BRI RIAER B R R A RHE X E RS - — KA
RIRSE - BREFOBIE %

A5 P60-S1 + S60-S + S60-T

S60-S S60-T
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Mobile EFT-POS e Support multiple wireless communication methods, such as GSM, GPRS/CDMA and
terminals WiFi, Applications include “pay-at-the-table” and transportation (e.g. Taxi).

e Models: S90, P90
EFT-POS % i B ' .
28 ke o YEZBEGBIAH - INGSM - GPRS/CDMA K WiFi % - fER&E [ 22 11
B (AnEHIRER) -
o AUSE 1S90 - PO

P90 S90

Consumer activated ¢ Support a variety of connection options to work with EFT-POS terminals

devices * Models: PP20-C, PP20-D, SP20, SP30, MT30
SHBEIRIEDRE o URZMEEFT-POS RImKAEZIRIE

e AUGE : PP20-C » PP20-D * SP20 * SP30 * MT30

i
MT30 PP20-D

SP30

Contactless devices ° Specifically designed for contactless payment, which comply with various industry
— s standards including MasterCard'’s PayPass and Visa’s PayWave.
FEB/XEFRE e Models: R50, S30, R50-M, T80

o HAEMALZNMRE - WHFEZEENEFRE - 815 MasterCard K PayPass & Visa &Y
PayWave °

e AI5E : R50 * S30  R50-M ~ T80

e

&y




H %

Contents

Corporate Information
NREH

Simplified Corporate Chart
NRIRBER

Directors and Senior Management
EENEEEEAE

Chairman’s Statement

TRWmE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE 2 & im DA

Corporate Governance Report
CEEARE

Report of the Directors
BEFemE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHARE

Consolidated Income Statement

iR Wk

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meEETHWER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

RARBEREBR

Balance Sheet

BERER

Consolida’Eed Statement of Changes in Equity
SAREEBE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ﬂl—,l—\ Iﬁf:ﬁ/}lbiﬁ

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fRa TS ERRM

Four Years Financial Summary

MEPBRHE

11

14

30

44

56

58

59

60

62

63

64

65

138



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010

BERRMEERDE « —2—FFFRH

Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

JIANG Hougchun (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Yiu Kwong

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
LI Wenjin
CHAN Yiu Kwong

BERMUDA RESIDENT REPRESENTATIVE

Codan Services Limited

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong Law
Reed Smith Richards Butler
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo

As to Bermuda Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
First Shanghai Capital Limited
19/F, Wing On House

71 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchants Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Wing Lung Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 2416, 24th Floor

Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR IN BERMUDA
Codan Services Limited

Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Ltd
26/F., Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

COMPANY'’S WEBSITE

www.paxglobal.com.hk
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Simplified Corporate Chart
NG AL

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of
this report.

PAX Global
Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)

(Bermuda)

100%

Pax Technology Limited
G

100%

Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Limited Pax TeCl‘l(USO/:')Dgy, Inc.
(PRC)
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Directors and Senior Management

EENGEEEAER

As at 17 March 2011, the date of the Report of the
Directors, the biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 48, is the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.
Mr. Nie has over 15 years of experience in the card
payment industry. He joined Pax Technology Limited (“Pax
Technology”) since founding of the company in 20 March
2000. He was the vice president of Pax Technology from 20
March 2000 to 1 January 2001. He has been the president
of Pax Technology from 2 January 2001 to 14 June 2010. He
was appointed as the chairman of Pax Technology since 14
June 2010. Mr. Nie previously worked as an engineer in the
Information Technology Department of the Headquarters of
China Merchants Bank in the PRC from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie
graduated from Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor
degree in Radio Electronics and obtained a master degree in
Radio Electronics Engineering from Southeast University in
1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company on 1 December 2010.

JIANG Hongchun Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Jiang, aged 39, is the Chief Executive Officer and an
executive Director of the Company. He is responsible for the
overall management of the Group’s operations. Mr. Jiang
was the vice president and the chief executive officer of
Hangzhou Pax Electric Technology Limited from 7 March 2007
to 31 January 2008 and from 1 February 2008 to 14 June
2010, respectively. He was appointed as the chief executive
officer and president of Pax Technology since 14 June 2010.
He has over 15 years of experience in payment industry and
meter solutions industry. Mr. Jiang joined Schlumberger
Technologies (Asia) Limited as a technical support engineer
in the Smart Cards & Terminal Division in August 1993, and
was promoted to senior engineer and product manager
for banking retail terminal in December 1994 and January
1996, respectively. He was a vice president of Beijing Future
Information Technology Co., Ltd., from 1 September 2001
to 28 February 2007, where he was responsible for sales
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and marketing of point-of-sale, automatic teller machines
and bank card processing solutions. Mr. Jiang is currently a
committee member of the Chinese National Standardization
Technical Committee for Electrical Measuring Instruments
(2 E TEBEFIZE(CEIMZEE) . Mr. Jiang graduated
from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (E/BXEAE) in
1992 with a bachelor’s degree in automatic control. He was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and an executive
Director of the Company on 24 February 2010.

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 47, is an executive Director of the Company. He is
responsible for risk management and treasury management.
He is also responsible for overseeing operations of Pax
Technology of which he has been a director since 5 April
2000. Mr. Li has over 16 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi Sun
Information Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL") from
1 August 1997 to 3 May 2005. HSITSL was a Hong Kong
company, which was a representative and purchasing office
engaging in general trading, and engaging in provision of
consultancy services. HSITSL provided consultancy services
to Pax Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li is also the
managing director of Hi Sun Limited since 16 August 1999
and an executive director of Hi Sun since 7 June 2001. He will
continue to be an executive director of both Hi Sun Limited
and Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”) and certain
of their subsidiaries after Listing. Prior to joining Hi Sun
Limited in 1999, he worked for several companies in the PRC
and Hong Kong, including Beijing Order Computer Company,
a system integration company, from 1994 to 1995 where he
was responsible for investment and administrative affairs.
Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree in law from the Peking
University in 1989. He was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company on 24 February 2010.
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Independent non-executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 45, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 December 2010.
Mr. Yip is currently an independent non-executive director
of BBMG Corporation (It R &R H BRAF]) and Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited( EEREIERARAR]),
and was the deputy general manager of Yuzhou Properties
Company Limited (&MNHERKKD BRAR]) from February
2010 to September 2010, all of which are companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yip has previously served as the
chief financial officer of Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (&
MEREEAR QA from 2004 to 2009, as a vice president
for Hi Sun from 2001 to 2003 and as the chief financial
officer of Fulbond Holdings Limited ({8 F8#=&B R A 7)) from
1999 to 2001, all of which are companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yip was an associate director in the merchant
banking department of ING Bank N.V. from 1996 to 1998.
Before that, he worked for Ernst & Young from 1987, and was
a senior manager at the time of his departure in 1996. Mr. Yip
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
degree in social sciences in 1987. He also holds a bachelor
degree in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 39, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Dr.
Wu is currently an assistant professor in accounting at School
of Business, The University of Hong Kong and previously was
an assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology from 2002 to 2008. Dr. Wu has been teaching
International Accounting Standards, US Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards. Her
academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media,
including the Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business
Week, Fortune, CNN, etc. Dr. Wu used to cooperate with
major accounting firms and the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (US) in research in the areas of accounting
manipulation and frauds by US listed companies. She also
provides professional interpretation and analysis services
for investment funds on accounting standards and on listed
companies’ financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from
Peking University with a bachelor degree in Economics in
1994. Dr. Wu obtained a master degree in Economics from
Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in Accounting from Stern
School of Business, New York University in 2003.

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 52, was appointed an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 1 December 2010. Mr.
Man graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor degree in laws in 1981. Mr. Man was admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has practised as a solicitor
at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as Chan and Lo)
in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of Joseph
S.C. Chan & Co.

RE

RE+ 39 RZE—ZTF+-A—
HEZEARRBNBILIERITES °
RETEAAETSAEEER G RE)
BHE - ZARZEZE_FE2-FTN
FREBBMEREHER ST REE
R - RELT—EHFEEFEFER -
FEAREFTERRPEEFTER - K
R pIEE gt EY RERFFH 2R
FREBEEEREHR  AOFR - B
BT BME CNNEZREERE -
REITBREGHEFESFAAIRERLE
MARISHERLZESAENRER L
MARIMEFHRM R ERFFES - HINA
REESRERBBEBESHEAN R ETAR]
BBRERNEXERERDITRE - R15
TR—ANEFEERIERKE - BLE
BEELTEN - RFTR NN ANFE
BREREBEBLEETZMN - KRR
ZET=FREMAIRNE Stern School of
Business X & H 841 o

N

Nk 2 RZE—FF+ R
—BEZESARRBILIFRTES -
XEER-NN—FEXREFEBKRE
BERBEELB - XEER—NN\THF
AT BRE - Bt —EERBHRIE
- XEE - RZITRENTT (AT Chan
and Lo)#i% - iR B AT ARRIEE - XE
& BRSUTREITTRARBA



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRBEBRAR « —E—ZFFH

Directors and Senior Management

EENGEEEAER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Lu Jie, Mr.
Luo Shaowen and Miss Kwok Ni Ha were the Company’s
senior management.

LU Jie

Mr. Lu, aged 45, is the executive vice president of Pax
Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Limited (“Pax Technology
(Shenzhen)”). He joined the Group in August 2001 and is
responsible for managing all the business development,
sales and marketing functions of the Group in China. Mr.
Lu has over 12 years of experience in sales and marketing
in the electronic payment industry and served a number
of management positions and executive role at a system
integration company Beijing Order Computer Company
from 1998 to 2001 including general manager of insurance
department, general manager of marketing department and
vice president of the company. He had also worked as an
engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources
of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences
from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995, respectively.
Mr. Lu holds a bachelor of science degree from Chengdu
Geology Institute. Mr. Lu completed a master of business
administration programme at the Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business in 2010.

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo aged 41, is the vice president and chief financial
officer of Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible for
the procurement and supplies activities, and oversees the
finance of the operations in Shenzhen. Mr. Luo graduated
from Wuhan University with a bachelor’s degree in economic
management. Mr. Luo has over 15 years of experience in the
card payment industry and over 11 years of experience in
financial administration and supply chain management. He
joined Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004 as Chief
Financial Officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served
various management positions including general manager of
the Zhuhai Branch of the Beijing Order Computer Company.
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KWOK Ni Ha

Miss Kwok , aged 28, is the Group financial controller of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the business
development and the finance of the Group. She joined the
Group as the Group financial controller in October 2010.
Miss Kwok was a manager for business development and
transactions of Hi Sun from January 2010 to September 2010.
She graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in business administration in 2005 and
completed a master degree in professional accounting in The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. She is a certified
public accountant and a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group,
she was an assistant manager of an international accountancy
firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX
Global Technology Limited, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

Initial public offering

Year 2010 was an important year and it represented a
remarkable milestone to the Group. The Company was
successfully listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010 (the “Listing”). Upon the completion of
Global offering, the Company issued 297,728,000 new shares
(including the execise of over-allotment option on 12 January
2011), the amount of net proceeds was approximately
HK$857.5 million. The Listing has allowed the Group to
establish its own brand name to enhance its position in
electronic fund transfer point-of-sale (EFT-POS) terminal
solutions market and to more effectively tap into international
capital market thereby attracting different investors.

Financial Results

Year 2010 was also a fruitful year for the Group, the
Group achieved revenue amounted to HK$723.6 million,
representing a significant growth of 47% compared to that
of HK$492.9 million in 2009. Total shipment of EFT-POS
terminals has hit a new record of 450,000 units, as compared
to that of 300,000 units. Profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the Company was HK$145.4 million,
representing a significant growth of 72% as compared to
that of HK$84.6 million in 2009, which also met the profit
forecast prepared in the Prospectus of the Company dated
8 December 2010. Basic earnings per share for the year was
19.4 HK cents (2009: 11.4 HK cents).

In 2010, the China segment recorded revenue of HK$566.3
million, representing an increase of 40% as compared to
that of HK$405.4 million in 2009. Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$148.0 million as compared to that of
HK$102.0 million in 2009. With the economic recovery and
increase in consumer consumption with bank card payment,
the surge in demand for the EFT-POS terminals of the Group in
China has brought exceptional growth to on Group.
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Year 2010 was a year of challenges and opportunities
to overseas segment of the Group, segmental revenue
amounted to HK$157.3 million, representing an increase
of 80% as compared to that of HK$87.5 million in 2009.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$24.5 million
as compared to loss of HK$1.5 million in 2009. The increase
in segmental operating profit during the year was mainly
attributable to increased sales to new markets explored
in the recent years such as Middle East, Taiwan and New
Zealand. With the persistent effort to explore the international
market and increase market shares in key international and
new emerging markets, the Group managed to regain its
momentum and profitability in overseas segment.

Outlook

Looking forward, we believe that the Group’s leading
position in China will grasp the enormous potential rapid
growth in this market and has laid a solid foundation for
our future growth. The Group will continue to increase
investment to the research and development of contactless
devices related to the markets of micropayment and mobile
phone payment, hence further enlarge of our existing
market share. In the coming year, the Group will also focus
on the type-Il telephone-POS terminal market and strive
to develop it as growth opportunity of our business. The
Group will continuously strengthen our sales and after-
sales service network as well as the technical support of
application development to customers, to further consolidate
the Group’s position in the China market. In addition, we
will also proactively invest in the research and development
of the payment products related to smart phone and online
e-commerce keep seeking new business development
opportunities in the future through close cooperation with
other players in the emerging third-party payment market.
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Regarding the overseas market, the continuous consolidations
of the industry in the recent years have brought to the Group
with unprecedented development opportunities. Meanwhile,
the continuous proactive expansion in the overseas market
by the Group in the past decade also formed a concrete
foundation for the development of our overseas business
in the future. The Group is committed to provide strong
support to its distributors and further enhance marketing and
distribution channels to obtain greater breakthrough in these
markets. Besides, the Group is striving to achieve new growth
in international market share by increasing its focus on the
South America region. The Group believes these forward
looking efforts will lead us to move a step closer to our goal-
“To become one of the leading players in the global market”.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my utmost gratitude to our customers, bankers,
suppliers, business associates and most valued shareholders
for the continuous trust and support to the Group and our
dedicated Directors, management and staff for their valuable
contributions in 2010. | look forward to further achieving
brilliant performance in the future.

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2011
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The Group is an electronic fund transfer point-of-sale (EFT-
POS) terminal solutions provider principally engaged in the
development and sale of EFT-POS products and provision of
related services (collectively, the “EFT-POS terminal solutions
business”). The Group is one of the dominant suppliers in the
EFT-POS terminal solutions market in China and the largest
customers of the Group include major merchant services
providers and financial institutions in China. The Group has
also become one of China Mobile’s suppliers for contactless
devices. Our EFT-POS products are sold to more than 50
overseas countries and regions including the US, Singapore,
Taiwan, Japan, South Korea, New Zealand, France, Finland,
Saudi Arabia, South Africa and Russia.

MARKET OVERVIEW

Improvement of bank card acceptance environment
of the bank card industry in China

The growth of the bank card industry in China has been
accelerating with the establishment of China UnionPay in
2002. With the joint efforts of China UnionPay and several
commercial banks in China, the bank card netted utilization
in China has been continuously penetrated. According to the
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC"), by the end of 2010, the
number of in-network bank card merchants reached 2.18
million (2009: 1.57 million) and in-network EFT-POS terminals
has grown rapidly to 3.33 million sets (2009: 2.41 million sets)
in China.

Although the number of in-network bank card merchants
and EFT-POS terminals experienced robust growth, the
penetration of EFT-POS terminals in China is still considered
to be relatively low. The low penetration rate implies vast
potential future growth of the EFT-POS terminal solutions
industry.
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Growth in card payment transactions in China
Consumer spending in China continuously increases with the
rapid development of the economy. Consumers in China have
gradually developed a spending habit of using bank cards in
settling their payments in purchases and the use of bank cards
will continue to be a popular mode of consumer payment in
China. According to PBOC, a total of 2.42 billion bank cards
had been issued in China by the end of 2010, representing
a growth of 16.9% as compared with 2009 and on average,
each individual in China held 1.81 bank cards by the end of
2010.

Growth in bank card transactions is one of the major drivers
of demand for EFT-POS terminals. Along with the continuous
penetration of China UnionPay netted utilization as well
as the ongoing improvement of bank card acceptance
environment in China, bank card transactions also grew
rapidly. In 2010, the inter-bank bank card transactions in
China hit RMB11.1 trillion, which is approximately 120 times
of the figure in 2001, prior to the establishment of China
UnionPay.

The scope of acceptance of bank cards in consumer
payments has also been extended from retailers, restaurants
and hotels to medical, educational, transportation and
telecommunication services. The following charts set forth
the value of inter-bank transactions of domestic bank cards in
China from 2006 to 2010.

hEEXHRBHRE
oh 0 04 2 B — 5 B P A M PR
HEMSEEN - h IS EE DB

BEARITRERNEEBEE - BT R
MERABEEXRA—TB2RLTENHE
BENRAR - BEFERARRKRITHE
B RZE-ZTFR - leAaﬁﬁ
2B RIFIT R BT NFRIE
£169%  H_Z TiifAﬂhﬁ
1.815RIBITFR ©

RITREEZNLZFERAEFT-POS KRimik
ﬁ'ﬁj:E)JEE;t@Jj]Z_ ° Ff%q:' .'fE sw HI-'
PERATE TR RPBRITRIIEIRE
FENE RO FRSGTAEER - =
T—ZF  PEMBRTRETRSEA
RE11 1818 - 5P BRIRBA AT
—EE-FHFTH1201F °

— ==

BT RHENRNZEREECHTER
F -ZBIROEHREZEE #HE B
B NEBARE - MTEXRHFI ZZZ R
FE T -SFHMPRRITEITRT
RR54EFE -

15



2

¢
b

16

L

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ¢ ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BEBMMNEEARAT « —E—SEERH

Management Discussion and Analysis

EIEE 2 WE DT

Total value of inter-bank transactions of domestic bank

cards in China from 2006 to 2010

(RMB trillions) (AR&({ET)
12 [

—EENFEF-FFRAFER
1TE{TIRIT FX ZAHE

1.1

Data source: PBOC, February 2011

2006 20074 20084 2009%

Development of EFT-POS terminal solutions
market in China

There will be gradual increase in the penetration of
electronic payment transactions in China spurred by
the PRC government’s support of the expansion of the
electronic payment industry. In July 2009, PBOC issued
the Guidelines on Improving Payment Service Environment
in Rural Area (BARMERINHE S (SRBERENIESE
= H) with specific measures for the construction of the
payment service environment in the rural area in China,
to promote the improvement of non-cash payment
instruments, and aim to enhance the efficiency and quality
of payment services in rural areas. The overall domestic
EFT-POS terminal solutions market remains promising and
the size of the market will continue to grow as EFT-POS
terminals further penetrate into the rural areas.
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There will also be a spurring growth in the EFT-POS
terminal solutions industry with the development
of mobile phone payment markets in China. The
policies on electronic business development in China’s
“Eleventh Five Year Plan” (BEFEBKER “+—1" #2)
promulgated by National Development and Reform
Commission (BIHKERNEZEE) and the State Council
Informatization Office (B#Br{E AL TVYEMAZE) which
highlighted the Mobile Electronic Payment Trial Project
(BEBEFEHEABMTE L) as one of the key areas of
development will continue to provide further stimulations
to the development of the mobile payment environment
and hence the growth of China’s EFT-POS terminal solutions
industry.

The market of telephone-POS terminals has developed in
China for a decade and gradually becomes a new electronic
payment channel featured by Chinese culture which is of
comparable scale to traditional EFT-POS terminal solutions
market. It is mainly designed for individual merchants of
wholesale markets with major business functions comprising
account enquiry and inter-cards transactions. Along with the
rapid deployment of telephone-POS terminals in a large scale,
the security of product and crimes related to bank cards have
aroused great concern. In November 2009, China UnionPay
issued the “Solutions to Management of Cross-industry Fixed
Phone Payment Terminals” (BIE & & 4% m 51T IE
7 2%), which regulates telephone-POS terminals business and
expressively requires the supension of type-l telephone-POS
terminals, with low security requirement and the installation
and use of type-Il telephone-POS terminals in most applicable
circumstances. The suppliers of the traditional EFT-POS terminal
solutions market have undertaken proactive preparation and
efforts for the entrance into the telephone-POS terminals
market, which in turns provide them with splendid market
opportunity.

Huge opportunity from global market

The global EFT-POS terminal solutions market is also highly
concentrated, with the top three players captured over 60%
of market shares in 2009. In recent years, the global market
has been undergoing consolidations with active merger and
acquisition activities, which provides great opportunities in
both mature and emerging markets for rising global EFT-POS
terminal solutions suppliers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7 [ R

The key financial figures for the year ended 31 December HEZ—ZF+_A=+—BHIHFE
2010 are extracted as follows: MEEZEVKEERESOT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=+T—HLHFE

2010 2009
—E2-2F —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT AT +/(-)
Revenue EER 723,610 492,942 +47%
Gross profit EH 291,870 192,860 +51%
Other income HA A 27,390 10,479 +161%
Selling expenses HERX (74,371) (59,083) +26%
Administrative expenses TIER (72,381) (43,744) +65%
Operating profit iyl 172,508 100,512 +72%
Income tax expense FriSRifA Sz (27,085) (15,532) +74%
Profit for the year attributable to RRARIEDRFFEAFA
equity holders of the Company JEAG F S 5 A 145,423 84,551 +72%
EBITDA EBITDA 175,121 102,435 +71%
Research and development expenses M
(included in administrative expenses) (BEETHERA) (34,899) (24,149) +45%
As at 31 December
W+=—B=+-—H
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T +/(-)
Total current assets MENE E AR 1,493,935 556,314 +169%
Total non-current assets EMBNEELTE 11,425 9,393 +22%
Total assets BEMER 1,505,360 565,707 +166%
Total liabilities BIEER 218,249 142,646 +53%
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,275,686 413,668 +208%
Total equity R R 1,287,111 423,061 +204%
For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2010 2009
—E-2F —_TTNF +/(-)
PER SHARE DATA BREE
Earnings per share for profit RAFIERFEFB A
attributable to equity holders of i ey
the Company BRREN
— Basic (HK$) —EHAKR(GET) 0.194 0.114 +70%
- Diluted (HK$) —#55(BT) 0.194 0.114 +70%
Financial ratios Bt =
Gross profit margin ESVAES 40.3% 39.1%
EBITDA margin EBITDA F)E % 24.2% 20.8%
Net profit margin g I e B 20.1% 17.2%
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EER
EEBEHBE_TTNF+ZA=1—
HIEFEM492. 9B EBBITIENET% =
BE-_Z-ZF+_A=1+t—HILEE
H723.6 BEBL  EREFIFT(EFT-
POS)#&umifkry B E 4 281 49450,000
EMFREE BHE_ZTTAF+=
A=+—RB1EFE## 300,000 & & in
50% ' EIREBDAFHEEATISHF
EERKIEFTIEE o

Revenue

Revenue increased by 47% to HK$723.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2010 from HK$492.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 with new shipment record of EFT-
POS terminals of approximately 450,000 units, representing
an increase of 50% as compared to that of approximately
300,000 units for the year ended 31 December 2009, partially
offset by the decrease in the average selling price in response
to market competition.

Sales by product category EEEmEREE

1% mm Countertop EFT-POS terminals

1%
AREFT-POSH I

2% 3% —— %
- om— e e
mm  Consumer activated devices
EEERIERE
mm Contactless devices
13% 1% SEEHAERRE
ity
mm Others
2010 2009 e
2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FAETT +/(-)
Countertop EFT-POS terminals A 3 EFT-POS 4 531,501 401,685 +32%
Mobile EFT-POS terminals T2 &) EFT-POS 4% 1 91,947 55,646 +65%
Consumer activated devices HEERIER 52,650 16,165 +226%
Contactless devices B ERRE 22,695 3,665 +519%
Services AR 75 14,260 13,574 +5%
Others HAh, 10,557 2,207 +378%
723,610 492,942 +47 %
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Countertop EFT-POS terminals

Revenue from sales of countertop EFT-POS terminals
increased by 32% to HK$531.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 from HK$401.7million for the year ended 31
December 2009.

With the gradual recovery of global economy and the
increased consumer spending by bank cards in China,
the demand for countertop EFT-POS terminals increased
dramatically, especially by the largest merchant service
provider and major banks in China. Revenue growth has also
been driven by increase in overseas sales during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Mobile EFT-POS terminals

Revenue from sales of mobile EFT-POS terminals increased
by 65% to HK$91.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 from HK$55.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Apart from increased demand with the recovery of global
economy and increased consumer spending by bank cards,
the growth of sales of mobile EFT-POS terminals outperformed
countertop EFT-POS terminals. The development of wireless
communication infrastructure worldwide has support the
growth in demand for mobile EFT-POS terminals as an
alternative to countertop EFT-POS terminals for its wider
applications, flexibility, mobility and cost-effectiveness. The
additional applications include pay-at-the-table in restaurants,
taxi and delivery services, etc.
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Consumer activated devices

Revenue from sales of consumer activated devices increased
by 226% to HK$52.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 from HK$16.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2009.

Due to the continuous growth in demand for one of our
product models which supports magnetic card reader IC card
reader, built-in contactless card reader functions, sales of
consumer activated devices experienced significant growth.

Contactless devices

Revenue from sales of contactless devices increased by 519%
to HK$22.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
from HK$3.7million for the year ended 31 December 2009.

In recent years, contactless payment environment is
developing with continuous rising popularity in China as well
as worldwide. With the effort of PBOC to promote contactless
payment applications, there is increasing investment in
infrastructure for contactless payment. Applications of
contactless devices are extended from public transportation to
retail business.

Services

Revenue from provision of services increased by 5% to
HK$14.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010 from
HK$13.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2009.

With the increase in aggregate deployment of EFT-POS
terminals, income from maintenance service increased
gradually during the year ended 31 December 2010.
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Sales by geographical region B EEEEE
m. Chinj Lnarket
- 78% o 82% e
‘ Overseas market
22% 18% oS
2010 2009
2010 2009
—E-BF _—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T AT +/(-)
China market A B T35 566,340 405,402 +40%
Overseas market BN 157,270 87,540 +80%
723,610 492,942 +47%

Revenue generated from the China market increased by 40%
to HK$566.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2010
from HK$405.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2009. With increase in consumer consumption with bank
cards, major banks in China continue to expand their
investment in EFT-POS terminals and related products.

Revenue generated from the overseas market increased by
80% to HK$157.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 from HK$87.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2009. The increase was mainly attributable to increased sales
to Middle East, Taiwan and New Zealand. Besides, the Group
has continuously extended its international market coverage
to new markets including Canada and Dominica in America,
Latvia, Georgia, Uzbekistan, Kazakhstan and Tajikistan in
Europe, Kuwait and Turkey in Middle East, and New Zealand
in Asia Pacific. As at 31 December 2010, we had a total of
25 (2009: 23) overseas distributors with sales contribution
amounted to HK$125.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2010 (2009: HK$62.4 million).
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Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin was 40.3% for the year ended 31
December 2010 as compared with 39.1% for the year ended
31 December 2009, which primarily reflecting the Group's
effort to proactively reduce the cost of materials and introduce
new products with additional features and higher gross profit
margin.

Other Income

Other income primarily included value added tax refund,
interest income and subsidy income. Other income increased
by 161% to HK$27.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 from HK$10.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2009, primarily reflecting the increase in value added tax
refund received during the year ended 31 December 2010.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 26% to HK$74.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2010 from HK$59.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2009, primarily reflecting an
increase of employee benefit expenses associated with the
increase in the number of sales staff.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 65% to HK$72.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010 from HK$43.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2009 primarily reflecting
increase in research and development costs, employee benefit
expenses in relation to administrative staff and certain listing
expenses.

Profit for the Year and Net Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the profit for the year
attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by
72% to HK$145.4 million for the year ended 31 December
2010 from HK$84.6 million for the year ended 31 December
20009.
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The net profit margin increased to 20.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2010 from 17.2% for the year ended
31 December 2009. The increase was mainly due to (i) the
increase in other income primarily reflecting the increase in
value added tax refund received during the year; and (ii) the
increase in gross profit margin.

Outlook

Currently, the Group is one of the dominant market leaders
in EFT-POS terminals solutions market in China. The Group
has positioned itself as a global EFT-POS terminal solutions
provider since its establishment in 2000, with its persistent
effort in expanding presence and increasing market shares in
international market, our EFT-POS products have been sold to
more than 50 overseas countries and regions.

China’s position of one of the world’s fastest growing
economies with huge commercial businesses, relatively low
EFT-POS terminals penetration rate compared with developed
countries, robust growth in card payment transactions and
gradual development of consumer spending habit of using
bank cards, have formed a concrete foundation for EFT-POS
terminal solutions industry in China. Further increase in the
penetration of electronic payment in China stimulated by PRC
government’s continuous support to modernize the country’s
electronic payment infrastructure, is expected to drive the
demand for EFT-POS terminal solutions products further in
China.

Riding the high tide of growth in electronic payment industry
in China, the Group continuously seeks new business
opportunities and revenue source. In 2010, the Group was
successfully selected as a qualified supplier for the standard
model of telephone-POS terminals by one of the major
customers and is expected to gain more market share in this
new industry. The Group is also well prepared for grasping the
explosive growth opportunities of the new mobile phone and
contactless payment markets in China.
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With the global market consolidation continues, demand for
EFT-POS terminals in both mature and emerging markets will
provide huge opportunities for the Group. The Group has
accumulated well-established sales and distribution channels
in various major markets through its continuous expansion
and over 20 distributors throughout the world. In addition
to the extensive coverage in its existing markets, the Group
has attained important breakthroughs in Australia, New
Zealand, North Europe, the United States and Canada, which
laid a solid foundation for the growth of the Group in these
markets. The Group is confident that overseas sales will grow
rapidly in coming future.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on several major areas
including: (i) to maintain and enhance our leading position
in China through continuous development of innovative
products that meet the customers’ demand; (i) to further
improve our research capacity of technology; (iii) to expand
and optimize our sales and after-sales service networks and
enlarge our scope of business and market share in major
international markets; and (iv) to seek potential merger and
acquisition opportunities.

Leveraging our leading position in EFT-POS terminal solutions
market in China, we believe that we will manage to capture
on the rapid development of the market. Coupled with the
splendid opportunity emerging in the global market, all these
will lay a solid foundation for our future development, leading
us towards our goals- “To become one of the leading players
in the global market”.

Liquidity and capital resources

During the year, the main source of fund of the Group was
cash generated from net proceeds of the Global Offering and
cash inflow from operating activities. Certain financial data
are summarised as follows:-
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As at 31 December

B+=—B=+-—H

2010 2009

—E-2F ZETNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET BT

Cash at bank and on hand WITRF LIRS 1,066,526 242,380
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,275,686 413,668
Net cash generated from operations KRB ELNIRS T 118,220 150,964

Net cash generated from/(used in) BEFBELE(FTA) B

financing activities IRE FHR 699,995 (15,837)
Current ratio (times) MENEE & (%) 6.8 3.9
Quick ratio (times) B L E(f7) 6.2 3.1

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had cash and short-
term bank deposit of HK$1,066.5 million (2009: HK$242.4
million) and no short term borrowings (2009: nil). As at 31
December 2010, the Group reported net current assets of
HK$1,275.7 million, as compared with HK$413.7 million
as at 31 December 2009. For the year ended 31 December
2010, net cash generated from operating activities was
HK$118.2 million, as compared with HK$151.0 million as at
31 December 2009. Net cash inflow from financing activities
for the year ended 31 December 2010 was HK$700.0 million
which was mainly generated from the Global Offering, as
compared with an outflow of HK$15.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2009 for repayment of bank borrowings.

We believe good liquidity will be maintained by funding our
expansions and operations with the net proceeds from the
Global Offering, as well as cash flows generated from our
operating activities.

Capital structure and details of charges
As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any short
term borrowings (2009: Nil).
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Approximately HK$229.0 million, HK$746.7 million, HK$89.8
million and HK$1.0 million (2009: HK$162.5 million, HK$14.4
million, HK$64.4 million and HK$1.0 million) of the Group’s
cash balances were denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”), Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"), US dollar (“US$") and Euro respectively
as at 31 December 2010.

Significant investment

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no
significant investment held as at 31 December 2010 (2009:
Nil).

Material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not
have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds raised from the Global Offering received by
the Company was approximately HK$701.1 million (excluding
proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option on 12
January 2011).

The planned amount of usage of total net proceeds (excluding
proceeds from the exercise of over-allotment option on 12
January 2011) are as follows:
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Total
planned amount
TEReE
HK$ million
HEBAE

Enhancing research and INARHFEERA
development effort 280.4
Expanding distribution network BWAD HEE 105.2
Potential merger and acquisition BIEGHE 245.4
General working capital —MREEES 70.1

701.1
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The net proceeds from the Global Offering was intended to
be utilised over three years from 2011 to 2013, the Group has
not utilised any proceeds for the period from 20 December
2010, the listing date, to 31 December 2010.

The remaining net proceeds have been placed on deposits
with banks in Hong Kong.

Exchange rates exposure

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in RMB, HK$ and US$. The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$
and US$, and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. Currently, the Group has
not entered into agreements or purchased instruments
to hedge the Group’s exchange rate risks. Any material
fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

The management considers the foreign exchange risk with
respect to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$
and transactions denominated in US$ are mainly carried
out by entities with the same functional currency. The
exchange rate of RMB to HK$ is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages foreign currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency
rates.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2010.
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Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31
December 2010 was 436. The following table shows a
breakdown of employees of the Group by function as at 31
December 2010:

AN ERK FHMBUER
R-B-—TFE+-A=+—H K&E
H¥EB 436 B EE - TREBIRZ=ZF—
TE+ A=+ HAREBBEZIING
MEEHE -

Management BEEE 10
Sales and after-sales services and marketing  $H&E MEERGALTISHRE 149
Research and development DIk 227
Quality assurance Eig 10
Administration and human resources TBEADEIR 13
Accounting g5 10
Production, procurement and inventory control 42 - £%AE K 17 & 15 17

436

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Employees are remunerated
with a fixed monthly income plus annual performance related
bonuses. The Group also sponsors selected employees to
attend external training courses that suit the needs of the
Group's businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly permitted
measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be comparable
to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative
to operating income as an indicator of the operating performance
of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from operating
activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP measures is
provided solely to enhance the overall understanding of the Group
current financial performance. Additionally because the Group
has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the
Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides
consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2010.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
of Directors (the “Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and
control of the Company and transparency and accountability
of all operations.

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company’s healthy growth and has
devoted considerable efforts to identifying and formulating
corporate governance practices appropriate to the Company’s
needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company's corporate governance practices are based
on the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied in formulating its corporate
governance practices the Principles and complied with most
of the Code Provisions for the year and up to the date of this
report save for the limited deviation(s) on the grounds and
causes explained in this report.

The Company periodically reviews its organisational structure
to ensure that operations are conducted in accordance with
the standards of the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2010.

The Company has also established written guidelines with
exact terms as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information of the
Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. All Directors should make decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company which include the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to board
papers and relevant information as well as the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the senior management.
The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior
to any significant transactions entered into by the senior
management officers.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Company and to the exercising of independent
judgement.

The Board currently comprises 6 members, consisting of
3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming (Chairman, appointed on 1 December 2010)

JIANG Hangchun (Chief Executive Officer, appointed on
24 February 2010)
LI Wenjin (appointed on 24 February 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors:

YIP Wai Ming (appointed on 1 December 2010)
WU Min (appointed on 1 December 2010)

MAN Kwok Kuen (appointed on 1 December 2010)

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The biographical information of the Directors of the Company
and their relationship among the members of the Board, if
any, are provided in the “Directors and Senior Management”
section of this annual report.
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Appointment, re-election and removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent
procedures for the appointment, succession planning of
Directors.

All Directors of the Company are appointed for specific
tenures which shall expire with retirement by rotation once
every three years and subject to re-election.

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the first
occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company. Besides, the Company shall consider to
engage external legal and other professional advisers for
providing professional development and training programmes
to Directors on an occasional basis.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on an
ad hoc basis, whenever it is needed. The Board will meet
regularly and Board meetings will be held at least four times a
year.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the
meetings of the Board from the date of incorporation to 31

34

December 2010 is set out below: FOEREINT ¢
Attendance/Number of
meetings
BEHRE/BIRY
Board Meetings
Name of Directors EEnE ExgeR
Nie Guoming (appointed on 1 December 2010) ZHR(R_T-TF+_A-HEZHR) 171
Jiang Hongchun (appointed on 24 February 2010) BAE (W2 -TF-_A-THBREZT) 111
Li Wenjin (appointed on 24 February 2010) FVER-ZT-ZF-_A-THREZA) 111
Yip Wai Ming (appointed on 1 December 2010) EER(R_Z-TE+_A-BEZMA) 71
Wu Min (appointed on 1 December 2010) R BRZZ-ZF+-A-HEZHA) 171
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles (appointed on 1 December 2010) YE#(R-_F-TFT-A-BEZH) 11
*  The Directors are not required to attend the rest of meetings * EBEEETFLER (Ix)‘é@iﬂﬁﬂlﬁzyﬁ
which mainly deal with implementation of executive policies TREEITH) Hi °
and administrative routine
Practices and Conduct of Meetings ERERRER

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.
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The Company Secretary attends all regular Board meetings
and when necessary, other Board and committee meetings
to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comment
within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by
the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s
bye-laws also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of
their associates have a material interest.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code,
the roles of the Chairman, Mr. Nie Guoming, and the Chief
Executive Officer (the “CEQ"), Mr. Jiang Hongchun are
segregated in order to ensure a clear distinction between
the responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO. There are
clear division of responsibilities of management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company’s business
between the Chairman and the CEO to ensure a balance of
power and authority of the Board for decision-making.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for
the effective functioning of the Board in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the Company Secretary and the senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the Directors
receive adequate, complete and reliable information in a
timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at
Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by the Board in a timely manner.
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The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and
strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He/She
is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management
and operations. The CEO is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure,
control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.

Independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and
independent judgement to the Board. By taking the lead in
managing issues involving potential conflict of interests and
serving on Board committees, all independent non-executive
Directors make various contributions to the effective direction
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Board at all
times met the requirements of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, which confirmed to the Company that he/
she has met the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’'s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with defined written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the
chairman and members of each Board committee as at the
date of this report is set out below:

Audit Committee

YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
WU Min (Chairman)

YIP Wai Ming

LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
WU Min

LI Wenijin

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 with written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors (including one independent non-executive Director
who possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise). None
of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the qualified accountant or external auditors before
submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the external
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.

() To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The written terms of reference which describe the authority
and duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and
adopted with reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no different view taken by the Audit Committee from
the Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2010 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

BEREET

BERZBEN _T-TF+-_A—HBK
Mo WHIREMBERE - EXEREE
H=RBIFNTESFENX - EFEE
—REABREEXREFEN SR
BEREERMBBUIFATES - &
“ZBEE2RREYIFARBREING
RBEZRIERA -

BZE

o
23

ZEERE B

\

~

RV HHRANRE  TNERE
=g EEAERGETAIINE
GHERL 2 ENEXHI TS ER
=S

—~
Q
~

(b) ZEINEBZBEFTETIE B
KB RSN - teat EHNEAZ BIEm 2
AR XRMERME - EENERING
ZHMRAEEERIER -

(0 HBARAFBREHE - ARRE
EHIE - A ERGIE KRR
R RAEME

E2RHBEASAMAGHLZ [
BV BERES RELERRIAEZ
ZEgZRENEEZERNBERE -

m S N

%
o
=

\

~

WEABRSHARAIZFEEELS
ZRENEEBEARM 2 EHHIBER -

BEZZ BERMINSZBENEE - BT
BIRRFEREEEEEA -

ANABE-F-FE+-A=1—8
FFE 2 EED AR ERES
B o



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRMEERDE « —2—FFFRH

Corporate Governance Report

EEERRE

Deviation from Code C3.3(e)(i)

Code provision C3.3(e)(i) stipulates that the members of the
committee must liaise with the Board of Directors and senior
management and committee must meet, at least once a year,
with the auditors.

The Company was a private company for most of the year
ended 31 December 2010 as it was only listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 20 December 2010.

No Audit Committee meeting of the Company has been
held during the year ended 31 December 2010, as no
external audit matters, internal controls and risk evaluation is
considered necessary to be reviewed during the period from 1
December 2010 (date of establishment of Audit Committee)
to 31 December 2010. The first Audit Committee meeting of
the Company was held on 10 March 2011, which was after
the year under review. Going forward, the Company will
convene Audit Committee in compliance with the respective
code provision in the code.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on
1 December 2010. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee include reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and
assessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the balance of expertise, skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individuals, the requirements
of the business of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. An external recruitment agency
may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection
process when necessary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, no meeting was
held by the Nomination Committee as matters such as
determination of the structure, size and composition of the
Board, selection of qualified and suitable persons as Directors
and appointments of independent non-executive Directors,
have been performed in the Board meeting held on 1
December 2010 before the Listing on 20 December 2010.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 84 and 85,
Mr. Jiang Hongchun and Mr. Li Wenjin, executive Directors
of the Company, shall retire by rotation and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the 2010 annual general
meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the 2011 annual general meeting
of the Company.

The Company’s circular dated 28 March 2011 contains
detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Board on 1 December 2010. The primary objectives of the
Remuneration Committee include making recommendations
on and approving the remuneration policy and structure
and remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing
the remuneration policy and structure and determination of the
annual remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and administration
of the human resources data and making recommendations
to the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The
Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/
or the Board about these recommendations on remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010, no meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee as matters such as
approval of the terms of Director’s service contracts have been
performed in the Board meeting held on 1 December 2010
before the Listing on 20 December 2010.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 56 to
57.

INTERNAL CONTROL

For the internal control system of the Company, the Board
has developed the Group's systems of internal control and
risk assessment and management. The Board has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and
effective internal control system to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and the assets of the Group. During the
year, the Board has conducted reviews of the internal control
system and considered the internal control system of the
Group has been implemented effectively.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors have rendered certain non-audit
services to the Company for the year ended 31 December
2010 amounted to approximately HK$6,000,000. The
amount mainly represents non-audit service fees for acting
as the reporting accountant in relation to the Listing of the
Company. The remuneration paid to the external auditor of
the Company in respect of audit services for the year ended
31 December 2010 amounted to approximately HK$721,000.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained
in the Company’s bye-laws. Details of such rights and
procedures to demand a poll are included in all circulars
to shareholders during the year and the procedures for
conducting a poll will be explained during the proceedings of
meetings.

Poll results will be posted on the website of the Stock
Exchange on the business day following the shareholders’
meeting.

The Board recognises that the general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board, or
at his absence, an executive Director, as well as chairmen
of the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee, or in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, will be available to answer
questions at future shareholders’ meetings.
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Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications
and relationships with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’'s
business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
posted.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2011
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Report of the Directors

ESEHRS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a limited
liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The Company was
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20 December 2010 (the
“Listing”).

On 8 December 2010, the Company issued a prospectus (the
“Prospectus”) and launched a global offering of 319,200,000
ordinary shares comprising 260,000,000 new shares issued by
the Company and 59,200,000 shares offered by the Digital
Investment Limited and Dream River Limited (the “Global
Offering”), at an offer price of HK$2.88 per share (the “Offer
Price”). On 12 January 2011, the over-allotment option
in connection with the Global Offering as detailed in the
Prospectus (the Over-allotment Option”) was partially exercised
and the Company was required to allot and issue an aggregate
of 37,728,000 additional shares at the Offer Price. Gross
proceeds received by the Company from the Global Offering
and the exercise of the Over-allotment Option amounted to
HK$857,457,000 in aggregate, of which HK$748,800,000 was
received from the Global Offering on 20 December 2010 and
HK$108,657,000 was received from the exercise of the Over-
allotment Option on 17 January 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the "Group”) are principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic fund transfer point-of-sale (“EFT-POS")
products and provision of related services.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 58.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company amounted to HK$145.4 million, which is consistent
with the profit forecast prepared for the Listing.

During the year, no dividends were declared by the
consolidated entities to their then respective shareholders
(2009: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS
Charitable donations were made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million (2009: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Cancellation of Employee Incentive Plan of a
subsidiary
On 27 April 2009, Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
("Hi Sun”), the former controlling shareholder of the
Company, approved the share option scheme for the
issuance of such number of ordinary shares in the capital
of Pax Technology Limited (“Pax Technology”), subsidiary
of the Company, representing no more than 5% of
the total number of shares in issue in the capital of Pax
Technology. On 6 December 2010, the board of Directors
of Pax Technology terminated the share option scheme
in accordance with its scheme rules. No options were
granted during the life of the share option scheme. For
details of the share option scheme of Pax Technology,
please refer to the circular of Hi Sun dated 8 April 2009.
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(b) PAX Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the issuance of in aggregate no more
than 10% in nominal amount of the aggregate of Shares
in issue on the Listing Date, representing 100,000,000
shares (subject to the terms of the Scheme and the
relevant provisions under the Listing Rules) under the
Scheme adopted by a resolution of the Board on 1
December 2010.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group and to
encourage Participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Scheme became effective on 1 December 2010 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid
and effective for the period of 10 years from that date.
Up to date of the report, no share option was granted
under the scheme.

For details of the PAX Share Option Scheme, please refer
to note 22(d) to the consolidated financial statements
and the Appendix Il of the circular of Hi Sun dated 8
November 2010.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to the equity holders of the
Company, including contributed surplus, other reserves and
accumulated losses, was nil.

(b) BEEBERETS

RRAR 2 ERESTEI([ZETE )
R-E—ZTF+-_A—ANNESE
REBREREY - BTERTBBLEN
HEAEZEITRDEEERN 10% (B
100,000,000 f& A% 1) ({B7EIZERZ
B R RETFT EMHRACEA
HRE) °

BREAS s R BB E A REE
HERBET - WSE2EER/R
RAREBRNBEND - BHiE
FARRBREBMOEE -

ZEElE R —E—TF+-A—H
R BRIESTTHEESER] - TR
T Bl B AME B+ FHE—
EBN - BEAREAH  WER
FAEREE R ERLBRE -

BRa=BRETENHAE - F2
Blsra BB ImAME2(d ERER
—E-TET-ANBTIENBEK
Bigg— o

A Ik
RZF-FTF+ZA=1+—H " KRAH
mAHSRTESHAAZHE(RE
Efan - HifEERRTER) o



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRBEERAE « —2—2FFRK

Report of the Directors

EEEHRS

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FOUR YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page
138.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeem any of the Company’s shares from
the Listing Date to the date of this report.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming (Chairman, appointed on 1 December 2010)

JIANG Hongchun (Chief Executive Officer, appointed on

24 February 2010)
LI Wenjin (appointed on 24 February 2010)

Independent non-executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming (appointed on 1 December 2010)
WU Min (appointed on 1 December 2010)

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles (appointed on 1 December 2010)
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In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws 84 and 85,
one-third of the Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years at the annual general meeting of the Company.

Messrs. Jiang Hongchun and Li Wenjin will retire and,
being eligible will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
term of three year from 20 December 2010 unless and until
terminated by either the Company or the Directors giving to
the other not less than a notice of three months.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors had any
existing or proposed service contracts with the Company
or any member of the Group (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 5 to 10.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company, its fellow subsidiaries or
its holding company was a party and in which a Director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

OFFICER INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2010, none of the Director and Chief
Executive Officer have an interest in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as notified to the Company.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2010,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more
of the Company's issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors
and Chief Executive Officer.
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Approximate
Class of Total number percentage
securities of Shares of shareholders
(Note 1) (Note 2)
Name of shareholder EEE EHER ROEH BAERBEDL
(Fgzx1) (PzE2)
Hi Sun Technology (China) BERE (BE) Ordinary 444,000,000 (L) 44.40%
Limited BRAT gl
Digital Investment Limited Digital Investment Limited Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
(Note 3) (Hi3E3) FR
HAO Capital China Fund L.P. ~ HAO Capital China Fund L.P. Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
(Note 3) (HtsE3) il
891 Venture Limited (Note 4) 891 Venture Limited (3t 4) Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
=gl
Dream River Limited (Note 5) ~ Dream River Limited (f{zF5) Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
=gl
HAO Capital Fund Il L.P. HAO Capital Fund Il L.P. Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
(Note 5) (Hf3E5) FR
HAO Partners L.P. (Note 6) HAO Partners L.P. ({5t 6) Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
Rl
Hao Partners (Holdings) Hao Partners (Holdings) Ordinary 118,400,000 (L) 11.84%
Limited (Note 7) Limited (}{3%7) EER
Liu Yangsheng (Note 8) 2352 (Hf:E8) Ordinary 236,800,000 (L) 23.68%
=gl
Bao Lei (Note 9) 2% (59) Ordinary 236,800,000 (L) 23.68%
TR
Citic Securities Co., Ltd. REEFREFR AR Ordinary 63,851,000 (L) 6.39%
(Note 10) (MtEE10) ERGL 47,880,000 (5) 4.79%
Notes: MIsE -
1. The letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares, the letter “S” 1. FEILUKRFRERONGR  FEIS]
denotes a short position in Shares. RITRRDENRE °
2. The percentage is calculated based on the total issued number 2. BADLDBREBEARANR-_ZT-FTF
of the Company as at 31 December 2010. TZA=T—HEETROHEEE -
3. Digital Investment Limited is owned as to 95% by HAO Capital 3. Digital Investment Limited % Bl

HAO Capital China Fund L.P. }2 Max
Burger 5o S HE 95% K 5% © AL -
HAO Capital China Fund L.P. 1Ri5 &%
K ERE & F 4% A Digital Investment
FiT# A #) 118,400,000 A& AR 17 7 A 42

Ny
S o

T

China Fund L.P. and 5% by Mr. Max Burger. As such, HAO
Capital China Fund L.P. is deemed to be interested in the
118,400,000 Shares owned by Digital Investment by virtue of
the SFO.
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4. 891 Venture Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is the general partner of HAO Capital China Fund L.P.
As such, 891 Venture Limited is deemed to be interested in
118,400,000 Shares owned by Digital Investment by virtue of

the SFO.

5. Dream River Limited is wholly owned by HAO Capital Fund
Il L.P. As such, HAO Capital Fund Il L.P. is deemed to be
interested in 118,400,000 Shares owned by Dream River by

virtue of the SFO.

6. HAO Partners L.P. is the general partner of HAO Capital Fund
Il L.P. As such, HAO Partners L.P. is deemed to be interested
in 118,400,000 Shares owned by Dream River by virtue of the

SFO.

7. Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited is incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and is the general partner of HAO Partners
L.P.. As such, HAO Capital L.P. is deemed to be interested in
118,400,000 Shares owned by Dream River by virtue of the

SFO.

8. As Mr. Liu Yangsheng controls more than one-third of the
voting power at the general meetings of 891 Venture Limited
and Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited respectively, he is deemed
to be interested in an aggregate of 236,800,000 Shares owned
by Digital Investment Limited and Dream River Limited by virtue

of the SFO.

9. Bao Lei, the spouse of Liu Yangsheng, is deemed to be

interested in Liu Yangsheng's interest.

10. Citic Security Co. Ltd. as the stabilizing manager borrowed
47,880,000 Shares from Hi Sun to cover Over-allotment Option
in connection with the Global Offering and details of which are

set out in the Prospectus.

10.

891 Venture Limited AF 2 & S
FXZ © AHAO Capital China Fund L.P.
HEBAEEA - Bt - 891 Venture
Limited RI5FE 75 K AEEROIHAE SR
Digital Investment F7#F 118,400,000 %
fRipREERER

Dream River Limited @HAO Capital
Fund Il L.P.2&%E - At - HAO
Capital Fund Il L.P.RIEFAKLIE
1EF AR B Dream RiverfiEAR
118,400,000 JRAR D R HEB #E ©

HAQ Partners L.P. ZHAO Capital

Fund Il L.P. AEREZA - ALt

HAO Partners L.P.RIEEZEA RS
1ERIEE B Dream River iEBH
118,400,000 JRAR D R HE B A ©

Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited 1A £
EYE5TMAL - AHAO Partners L.P.HY
LTERABA AL HAO Capital
L.P.IREZEHNMBEEGAFEEAER
Dream River P #118,400,000 fi%
IR PR RER -

21155 % £ 74891 Venture Limited
e Hao Partners (Holdings) Limited #J
REAXE LEHEEEBO =92
— BURBREEF KB RIEER
7 Digital Investment Limited & Dream
River Limited P % £ 236,800,000 A%
By AR -

RERBENER)  WEAREE
BovEmh A s -

PEEERZEGR AR ((EAEBTEESK
BIEN)ES 515 47,880,000 fEA% 15
LA 2Bk E 2 BRI AE
HFBHRBRERNA -

51



52

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRBRERAR « Z2—ZFFH

Report of the Directors

ESEHRS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has occupied and rented office premises owned by
Hi Sun in Beijing under a tenancy agreement (Details are set out
in note 29(a) to the Financial Statements). Based on the agreed
annual rental of each of the tenancy agreement, as each of the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profit ratio) of the
transactions contemplated under the tenancy agreements are
on an annual basis less than 0.1%, the tenancy agreements will
constitute de minimis continuing connected transactions which
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

These was no related party transaction which constituted
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
not exempted under Rule 14A.31 or Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2010. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
such transaction.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS
OF INTERESTS

Hi Sun has pursuant to the deed of non-competition dated
1 December 2010 between the Company and Hi Sun,
undertaken to the Company that, among other things, at any
time during which the Shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
or any stock exchange recognized under the SFO and for
so long as it remains the controlling shareholder of the
Company, Hi Sun will not, and will procure that its subsidiaries
(other than the Group) will not directly or indirectly engage
or otherwise be interested in the design, manufacture and/or
sale of EFT-POS products and the provision of related services
in the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in which any
member of the Group may from time to time operate. The
undertaking does not apply to Hi Sun’s interests in the Shares
(including the exercise of any right as a shareholder) and any
interests held by Hi Sun and its associates in up to 5% of any
class of listed securities of a company that engages in the
business of the Group.
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Hi Sun has undertaken to the Company that, if any time that
the Group or our independent non-executive Directors have
reasonable cause to believe that Hi Sun may be in breach
of the non-compete undertaking, against undertaking of
the Company to keep the information received confidential
except for disclosures of such information as may be
necessary to comply with our legal or regulatory obligations,
or such information that is already in the public domain
other than as a result of our breach of the confidentiality
undertaking or for the purposes of enforcement of the non-
compete undertaking, Hi Sun will at our or our independent
non-executive Directors’ request provide all such information
that it possesses and may be lawfully disclosed pertaining
to such request so as to enable us or our independent non-
executive Directors to make an informed assessment as to
whether or not there has in fact been a breach of the non-
compete undertaking. On 11 January 2011, Hi Sun signed
an annual declaration of compliance with the Deed of Non-
competition. Hi Sun has complied with the non-compete
undertaken given above.

None of the Directors of Hi Sun nor the Company have
any interest in any competing business that is discloseable
under Rule 8.10(1) and Rule 8.10(2), respectively, of the
Listing Rules. In respect of any other conflicts of interest that
may arise between the Group and Hi Sun Group, common
directors between the two groups or any director with an
interest in the relevant transaction(s) will be required to
abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolutions.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are
as follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 9.4%
—  five largest suppliers combined 23.5%
Sales

—  the largest customer 24.3%
—  five largest customers combined 61.2%
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 12 January 2011, the Over-allotment Option was partially
exercised and the Company issue an aggregate of 37,728,000
additional shares at the Offer Price of HK$2.88 per share.
Gross proceeds in relation to the over-allotment amounted
to HK$108,657,000 and was received by the Company on 17
January 2011.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme or the
Group or Company set up in accordance with the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. Under the scheme, the
employees are required to contribute 5% of their monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 and they can choose
to make additional contributions. The employer's monthly
contributions are calculated at 5% of the employee’s monthly
salaries up to a maximum of HK$1,000 (the “Mandatory
Contributions”). The employees are entitled to 100% of the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon their retirement at
the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group is required
to contribute an amount to certain retirement benefit
schemes based on approximately 7% to 20% of the wages
for the year of those workers in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefits
obligations of those workers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained during
the year the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

Pursuant to the compliance adviser agreement dated 16
November 2010 entered into between the Company and
First Shanghai Capital Limited, First Shanghai Capital Limited
has been appointed as the compliance adviser as required
under the Listing Rules for the period from the Listing Date
to the date on which the Company complies with Rule 13.46
of the Listing Rules in respect of the Company’s financial
results for the year ending 31 December 2011. First Shanghai
Capital Limited has received a fee for acting as the Company’s
compliance adviser during the period.

As at 31 December 2010, each of Wise Success Investments
Limited, First Shanghai China Equity Fund Limited and an
employee of First Shanghai Securities Limited held 400,000
shares, 240,000 shares and 6,000 shares of the Company
respectively. Wise Success Investments Limited, First Shanghai
China Equity Fund Limited and First Shanghai Securities
Limited are all fellow subsidiaries of First Shanghai Capital
Limited.

As notified by First Shanghai Capital Limited, save as disclosed
above, neither First Shanghai Capital Limited nor its respective
directors, employees or associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)
had any interest in the shares of the Company, or had any options
or rights to subscribe for or to nominate persons to subscribe for
the shares of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

AUDITOR
The finandcial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman
Hong Kong, 17 March 2011
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY 2B RS

PRICEVVATERHOUSE(COPERS

BERKESMERA

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to
137, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BY MRS

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2010, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

ek
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—HLEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —IZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BaE FET FAT
Revenue 0 5 723,610 492,942
Cost of sales 4 RA 7 (431,740) (300,082)
Gross profit EH 291,870 192,860
Other income A 5 27,390 10,479
Selling expenses HEMX 7 (74,371) (59,083)
Administrative expenses TER 7 (72,381) (43,744)
Operating profit eyl 172,508 100,512
Finance costs & AR 10 - (429)
Profit before income tax PR P45 75 AT A 172,508 100,083
Income tax expense FRSHiF 2 11 (27,085) (15,532)
Profit for the year attributable to RNARIERF A ARG
equity holders of the Company FEmAH 145,423 84,551
Earnings per share for the profit FRARRRERIFE ARG
attributable to equity holders i M) 2 B AR 2 )
of the Company during the year (AGRRABTZEY])
(expressed in HK$ per share)
— Basic - 7 13 0.194 0.114
- Diluted -#E 13 0.194 0.114
The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these E65F 137 AWM NiRe U BmE
consolidated financial statements. Hepgls o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEEWER

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2010 2009
—E-TF C—ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Profit for the year FR=F 145,423 84,551
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 H W=
Exchange differences arising on BREGINHT B A T
translation of the financial MIEmREEZ
statements of foreign subsidiaries MEH Z5E 17,526 -
Total comprehensive income KARERBFEA
for the year attributable to BiEFER2E
equity holders of the Company  Uiz=#2 %8 162,949 84,551
The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these F65F 137 BT hEREMBHmKk 2
consolidated financial statements. EHrApEs -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Leasehold land

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Deposits and other receivables
Trade and bills receivables
Restricted cash

Cash at bank and on hand

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of
the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

BE

FRBEE

E RN G
HE+H
FREEERE
hRBEE

EaT

e M E A WA
& W BR R N FE M R 1

XRFIRE
RITEFLERE

RBEERE
BEERE

s

RRRERSAE ARG
MR R it 4

[EEN
i

SRR

The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December

Rt+t=-—H=+—H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BIRE FET TATT
15 11,194 9,168
16 231 225
_________ 11,425 9393
18 148,520 110,558
19 7,001 2,989
19 269,042 198,647
20 2,846 1,740
21 1,066,526 242,380
..1493,935 556314
1,505,360 565,707
22 100,000 -
23 1,187,111 423,061
1,287,111 423,061

¥ 65% 137 B Z W4z E

BITsHER 2
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEBEEBER
As at 31 December
R+=-A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EFNE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET BT
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FETBRX 24 143,033 86,912
Other payables and accruals HBEMNERSRRETHRIE 24 55,735 41,322
Taxation payable JERIFEIE 19,481 14,412
Total current liabilities and RBEER
liabilities EE8E 218,249 142,646
Total equity and liabilities EaRkEERAE 1,505,360 565,707
Net current assets RBEERE 1,275,686 413,668
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBRABEE 1,287,111 423,061
On behalf of the Board
REEEE
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
FZE A EYE
Director Director
EBE o
The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these F65F 137 BT EREMBHmKk 2
consolidated financial statements. Hep o o
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Balance Sheet

EERER

As at
31 December 2010
R=2—FF
+=—A=+-—H
Notes HK$'000
BT FExT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB AR ZIRE 17 528,103
Total non-current assets *ropEEe®" ! 528,103
Current assets REBEE
Cash at bank and on hand WITAF LIRS 21 697,082
Total current assets REEEAT 697,082
Total assets EEHAT 1,225,185
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to ARTRERFEA
equity holders of the Company  FE{hfEZ
Shares Capital SN 22 100,000
Reserves f# 23 1,120,807
Total equity ERBE 1,220,807
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals EL At < 5RIE S FE ET5RIE 24 4,378
Total current liabilities and REBEER
liabilities =REtat ] 4,378
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 1,225,185
Net current assets RBEEFE 692,704
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERAEAE 1,220,807
On behalf of the Board
REESS
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
= 8 EYE
Director Director
=2 EBE
The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these F65F 137 AZMF N BmRE L
consolidated financial statements. Heh g5 o

62



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRBEERAE « —2—2FFRK

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERBEX

For the year ended
31 December 2010
Balance at 1 January 2010

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising on
translation of the financial

statements of foreign subsidiaries

Total comprehensive income

Transactions with owners
Allotment of shares pursuant

to the Reorganisation (Note 1.1)
Shares issued under the capitalisation

issue (Note 22(b)(i))
Shares issued pursuant to the

Global Offering (Note 22(b)ii)

Balance at 31 December 2010

For the year ended
31 December 2009
Balance at 1 January 2009

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2009

BE-2-%5t27
=t-ALFE
Ho-26-A-B 26

2
Frghl

Hfp2ERE
BEEHELT
BHBRELL
E5 2R
2EYEAE

BEEAZRS
BEEARERN
(BE1.1)
REBNEETZ
EERA (K 220))
RESREERTL
Tt (B3 22000()

R-R-25+2A
ct-REk

BECRENETCA
ST-BLEFE

R_FENF-A-B2EH

E3L

Frghl

EYESE

RZBENETZR
Zt-RAzER

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

LINGL N

Reserves

i
Share  Share  Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve earnings Total  equity
k= RGEE BxRE HERE REEA ar RRER
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000
TEn  THn  TEn  TEn  TER  TEn  TEn
__________ ToDIBIL 1938 1068 423061 473061
- - - - 145423 145423 145,423
- - - 17526 - 1756 17526
__________ T DD 11506 1541 161349 162349
25000 503,103 (528,103) - - (25,000 -
49,000 (49,000) - - - (49,000 -
26,000 675,101 - - - 675101 701,101
L. 000 L1904 GBI .. C oot oot
100,000 1,129,204 (414978) 36,854 436,031 1,187,111 1,287,111
__________ oD IBIn 1938 2605 338510 338510
- - - - 84551 84551 84,551
__________ SR o e LR LA A L
- - 113125 19,328 290,608 423,061 423,061
E65F 137 B2 Nire U mE 2

The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

Hep gk -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERTRER

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant
and equipment
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary
shares pursuant to the Global Offering
Payment of share issue expenses
Repayments of short term
bank borrowings
Increase in restricted cash

Net cash generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents
Exchange gains on
cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

REXBCHERE
REMBRE
ERFHE

B PSH

REXFBRE
B FE

RETBZ2RERE

BEDE  B&E
&L

B UL
HEME - BELERE
ZFRIA

RERB RIS FER

BMEEHCRETNE
RIBEIRBEEETT
BB SRR
SN BT IR B S
BRBHRIT

fEE

SR HIER 2 1E 0

MEEHESE(FFH)

REFH

ReERReEEY
120 % HE
RehReFENZ
b 54 W s
FONHRER
R EEY

FRBAER
REeEEY

The notes on pages 65 to 137 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+t—HLEE

2010 2009

—E-FF ZETNF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MIEE FERT FET
26(a) 140,236 155,549
- (429)
(22,016) (4,156)

________ 118,220 150,964
(4,560) (2,842)

928 271

26(b) 233 -
3399 (2,571)

748,800 -

(47,699) -
- (15,209)
(1,106) (628)
.....099,995 (15,837)

814,816 132,556

9,330 -

242,380 109,824

21 1,066,526 242,380

F£652 137 AZMENFEMBHRER 2
Hegoy o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EE

GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 20 December 2010 (the “Listing”). The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

On 8 December 2010, the Company issued a prospectus
(the “Prospectus”) and launched a global offering of
319,200,000 ordinary shares, comprising 260,000,000
new shares issued by the Company and 59,200,000
shares offered by the Selling Shareholders (as defined
in Note 1.1 below) (the “Global Offering”), at an offer
price of HK$2.88 per share (the “Offer Price”). On 12
January 2011, the over-allotment option in connection
with the Global Offering as detailed in the Prospectus
(the "Over-allotment Option”) (Note 22(c)) was partially
exercised and the Company was required to allot and
issue an aggregate of 37,728,000 addition shares at the
Offer Price. Gross proceeds received by the Company
from the Global Offering and the exercise of Over-
allotment Option amounted to HK$857,457,000 in
aggregate, of which Option HK$748,800,000 was
received from the Global Offering on 20 December 2010
and HK$108,657,000 was received from the exercise of
the Over-allotment Option on 17 January 2011.

The Company is an investment holding company and
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the development
and sale of electronic fund transfer point-of-sale
("EFT-POS") products and provision of related services
(collectively, the “EFT-POS terminal solutions business”).

As the Company was only incorporated on 15 February
2010, there are no comparative figures in the Company’s
balance sheet as at 31 December 2009.

These financial statements are presented in thousands
units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise
stated. These financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors on 17 March 2011.

—REMREEEA
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Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP 1 —RERREEEMHE)
REORGANISATION (continued)
1.1 Reorganisation 1.1 E4

66

Prior to spin-off of the EFT-POS terminal solutions
business for the Listing of the Company, the then
ultimate holding company of the Company is Hi
Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, which operated the EFT-POS terminal
solutions business and other businesses, including
the provision of telecommunication solutions and
operation value-added services, provision of financial
solutions, services and related products, provision
of payment solutions and services and the sales
and manufacturing of electronic power meters and
solutions through various subsidiaries. In preparation
for the Listing of the Company, Hi Sun underwent
a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”),
pursuant to which the companies engaged in the
EFT-POS terminal solutions business were transferred
to the Company and then the Company became the
holding company of the consolidated entities. The
Reorganisation mainly involved the following:

(i) On 4 November 2010, the Company entered
into an agreement with Hi Sun to acquire 100%
equity interest in Grand Global International
Limited (“Grand Global”). Grand Global held
60% equity interest in Pax Technology Limited
("Pax Technology”), which in turn held 100%
equity interest in Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.("Pax Computer
Shenzhen”) and Pax Technology, Inc. The
Company credited as fully paid the one nil paid
shares held by Hi Sun and allotted 149,999,999
shares as fully paid to Hi Sun in exchange for the
equity interests in Grand Global;

RAEBARRAR EMMAREFT-
PO S#RImMEER IR 5 ZREFSAT -
ZAN/NESIA S S $ S /NS b
SRR (PR ARAR (S
5 1) (%R R 5 BB X P =
R ETT) - BEEFT-POS &4
PR REBREMER - B
REBZRMBATIRES
AT RN ELIBERE - 1R
HEMBRFR - REKRIEE
Em BERINBRARER
BAREE RBIEERAEE
mEBRFE - BEEBEARRAE
Eh o mBETEEEA(E
A1) B EEFT-POSHR
AR T REKN T A G
EYARE  ARRIREMAR
KAEEHEBNZRAR - &
HEFEHRATAHE :

i) RZE—ZTF+—HMO
=IRNVN/NEST S VA
ek - WHE Grand Global
International Limited
([ Grand Global ])#100%
f&#E - Grand Global$a
BEMEBRAR(ESR
BHE 1) #160% A% # -
BERMBRAFEEEAE
2 fir ORYI) AR A A
K Pax Technology, Inc.HY
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EE

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP 1 —REMREEEAE)
REORGANISATION (continued)
1.1 Reorganisation (continued) 1.1 B4 (&)
(i) On 5 November 2010, the Company entered (i) RZZE—FF+— H
into a share swap agreement (the “Share HH ARQFIEDIgital
Swap”) with Digital Investment Limited (“Digital Investment Limited
Investment”) and Dream River Limited (“Dream ([Digital Investment])
River”) (the “Selling Shareholders”) for the K Dream River Limited
acquisition of their entire shareholding in Pax ([Dream River]) ([HHE
Technology, one of the subsidiaries of the IR ) FTa ;R ek ([
Group, in consideration of allotting credited as 1) AW HERAK
fully paid 50,000,000 ordinary shares to each of SEHEP—HEHEB QA
Digital Investment and Dream River. The Share BEREREIARE R
Swap was completed on 14 December 2010. {& /A Digital Investment

K Dream River& B8tz
50,000,000 A% A BR 51| 1 5%
REE RN - BEH
RERZZT—ZF+=A
+P B °

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEHEE
POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation 2.1 REEE

Immediately prior to and following the Reorganisation, EREHILBEEEHRE - KX
there is no change in the shareholders of the Group SENRESETMES -
which are Hi Sun, Digital Investment and Dream mZzERRE A= - Digital
River. The EFT-POS terminal solutions business is Investment [z Dream River °
mainly conducted through Pax Technology, Pax EFT-POS #Rumik iR R 77 2R EE 7S
Computer Shenzhen and Pax Technology, Inc., FERARANTFAEEBR
which are the subsidiaries of the Company. The B BEE#ENCEI)
Company has not involved in any business before BBRATR K Pax Technology,
the Reorganisation. The Reorganisation, which was Inc. &% « N"RAIREHFIT
completed before the Listing upon the Share Swap BB BEMMER - EER LT
with Digital Investment and Dream River as described A (E3CHIEE 1.1 Pt B Digital
in Note 1.1 above, merely involved putting together Investment &z Dream Riverig
of all subsidiaries originally carrying on the EFT- REFTERK) BED LT E KE
POS terminal solutions business of Hi Sun with the B R RGRAMBETEFT-
insertion of the Company for the purpose of Listing. P O S 4R Im iR AR 7 ZR S TG HO B
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements BARIEKNATESG - Bt -
of the Group has been prepared on a consolidation REFGEVEHRREDIZR
basis and is presented using the carrying values of REREERE - WUAREER
the EFT-POS terminal solutions business under the E2YFEANMEFT-POS 4R inmik
Group for both of years presented. FERFREBREEZY -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2 FESTHEHMEE)

2.1 RBEE(E)

68

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated on
consolidation.

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

NEIAR S - B MEX ST
EEMRERWANAGHET
PASI3H o

WG EMBMRARAHE
ZEABRRHEINNT - K5HE
SN ZEBRNBZE
JIEE-—EERER -

ARBZEFEAMBHRRERE
BEGEAGRM 2 EBY
BamE R ([ FEMHREE
Al RE - RAMBHRRAE
RIE L RAE RS

mENTEEEBEREERD
MBEREFRERAETERSS
fhat AEREREHERAA
EE G BORREL A - 5
KB RI2E A B R R
IS R AR e A R AR B A R
= BE R A EER T 3K
AW -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted:

e HKAS 24 (Revised), '‘Related party
disclosures’ 2

e HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ '

e HK(IFRIC) Int 19, ‘Extinguishing financial
liabilities with equity instruments’ 4

e  Amendments to HKAS 1, 'Presentation of
Financial Statements’ ?

e  Amendments to HKAS 27, ‘Consolidated and
separate financial statements’ ?

e  Amendments to HKAS 34, ‘Interim Financial
Reporting' 2

e Amendments to HKAS 32, ‘Classification
of rights issues’ 3

e Amendments to HKFRS 1, ‘Limited
exemption from comparative HKFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters’ *

e Amendments to HKFRS 1, 'First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards’ 2

e Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised),
‘Business Combinations’ *

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.1 RBEE(E)

(a)

EAMER-_ZT—ZTF—
A—BAREMKRERBR
T E R (8 AR
e

o EBLFEAFE 245
(ge128]) [E &
]2

o EBHEBUMBMEELEASE
9%k [&m T A"

o HAE(BBRIBmER
BZEE)F 195 A
mTAEEKEVHE
&l

o EBEBZEHEAF IR
[ FmEZ5] 218
HE

o EBZFEAFE 275
[ 4R & & B 7 B 7% =R
*~] 218E]?

o EBZFEAFE 34
[REII S | 218
HE

o EBLFEAFEI2H
[z ¥R 21853

o EXBUMBMEEASE
155 [ ERRNERH
BEAUBMELENE
TRUEBRBEEER 2
BRER | 21854

o HEBUBMEEAR
155 [ E8RERNE B
B EARER] Z185]2

o HEBUBMEEAR
3R (KUBET) [ %556
Bt 218574
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e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2 FESHBERBE(®)
2.1 RBEE(E)

70

(a

New standards, amendments and interpretations
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2010 and
have not been early adopted: (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial

Instruments: Disclosures’ 2

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Int 13,
‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’ 2

Amendments to HK(IFRIC) Int 14,
'Prepayments of a minimum funding

requirement’ 2

(a)

ERHER T —FTF—
A—BAREM L ERFR
AN TR (B DR AR
B (&)

o B[EMBHELERSE
7RISR I A #
B 21&3]2

o EHE(EBHBRER
BZE®)F 139 %
FRHETEl] 21852

o BHE(EBHBRER
BZEBE)F 145 &
RKESBEMNFEEIZ

\:

CHE
e Amendments to HKAS 12, ‘Income taxes’ ° o BEGEERIFE125R
[FTiSHi] 2 &R °
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or L R-ZE—=F—H—H
after 1 January 2013. ok 2 1B B A 2 F 2 HAfE
AR e
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 2 R ZE——F—HF—H
after 1 January 2011. o 1B BR 2 FE M
R o
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 3. RZIE—ZTF-_F—H
after 1 February 2010. ok 2 1B FE 2 F 2 HA R
AR e
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or 4 RZE—EFLH—H
after 1 July 2010. s,z & s 2 5 B
R o
> Effective for annual periods beginning on or 5 R-ZE——F—H—H

after 1 January 2012.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of the new
standards, amendments to the standards and
interpretations but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations
would have a significant impact to the Group’s
results of operations and financial position.

2 BFARZFERE
R e

AREBDEF YL
HWRAZEFTRREZF
EETTAHE - BRARMEE
AEHTER - BIERI 2 &
RIRREERHASE Y
BEXyE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Consolidation and combination
(a) Subsidiaries

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.2 mEREH
(a) B LA

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the
Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Apart from the Reorganisation, the acquisition
method of accounting is used to account
for the Group’s business combination. The
consideration transferred for acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets
transferred, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date. On
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

B AREASEAEE
BHEMBRZEREK  H
—RMEHEBEBFEIR
SRNAAER - RFHE
AEEEEENZ B8
R @ @A TTE
Al BB EENTE
ERFE - MBAFHE
HEERTASEEHE
EEARSG W
IEE RBUBARA °

PREASN - EETEVIEIAR
Ty REAR R E XA B
AT » RUEE — R
BRARKMEENNKER
AEBEREE %
TR T AR FTE 4 sk
ERENRAFE - IEE
MREREKARELE
EEMERNEEXRBED
NPE - WEABKAE
EERH EEBAH
o BT U B8 BT BRI B B DA
KA ENRENRSER
& M ARER Y B
HIM A FEE - HRE
PIUEERE - AEEZERQ
FESIZ IR EN
WEEDEEFENL
1 - FERR A MR T B AA]
IR -

KRB RE 2 REERA
BOREARR - RATRE
BEERREZRA -

KB~ R 2 A H AR A
122 P WOER R R U B A
BE o
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e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FTESHBESEHE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation and combination (continued) 22 mEREH (B

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value
of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

2.3 Segment reporting 2.3

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources, assessing performance of the
operating segments has been identified as the board
of directors that make stratagic decisions.

(a) BB E (%)
PrEmAENEER - K
BT R SR e
B ARBWEE T 2
RIS NE RN AT
(VRN LIy
AR B EFEN R FE
ThrskmmE - B
EBERFABAMBAREE
FENAFE ZERE
RAESAWaRTHER

NAERS - BEHRRER
SMEENARERKE T
IA$H5E - BRIER BIRHRE
BERNTERENEELR
BAE - BRIRERERTT
TLAKSE - BARNE
AR ESREN - A
il (R BN 5% [ P BR AR 2 TR
RRFF— -

2 EBERE
DB AR A B EIR
RERZARHRE BT
EH TERERREGERN
ERHENEER - FHEEE
7 BBEY R 3R S 4 SR BR R SR
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e MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.4 HEBE
(a) HERZHEY

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities
are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates or the currency in which
funds from financing activities are generated
(the “functional currency”) (Note 4(b)). The
consolidated financial statements are presents
in HK$, which is the Company’s functional
currency and the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end/period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available for sale, are included in
other comprehensive income.

AEBEZERNEAVH
BRAABRHNEERAE
EBREMETERAERE
MERSAREEDELEE
ENEB(HEEER])
(FfaE4b)) At E - HRETH
BRABTEHR  ZEH
RARTRAEENEH

o

(b) XER#EE

INER BRI HEBRR
HEEEENTEERN
ERHESNEESR - B
REZXHRBER/HR
PE & H LA SN B A B
EREERBEELMNIH
ERm I RNER A Was R g

e

FEBEREERARF
(aniz S EF A0S M =X
BRZBE) ZELER
RIBET R R A FEK
mA BB 8D - FE
BemEE(MRFEDL
EDRBER) ZERE
AT AR M2 mEUas o
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e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

2 FESTHEHMEE)
2.4 HNEBRE (E)

74

(c) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the
group entities. (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

(c) EE LA
ML E M R 2 R E T AE
RNFEEBMEE (2
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e BHRRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment

2 FESHHERBME(E)
25 ¥ BERRE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5-10%

Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Office furniture and 18%-25%

equipment
Plant and equipment 9%-25%

Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

FIBEYE - BB MERERESL
PR AR E MORLE B R AR ©
BESERABREBEILFEER
BIEIEFS

2 HIE A AR ARREEN &
AIBEMAARERE - LA RIAR K
RBER] SERt ER - HIRRARS
S ABENRAERERR
BUBE(MER) - A HEM
HEMREEREL Y BE
FEER A Wan R INER -

WE - BB RBRENOTENLE
OERE AR AT AERADA
ERAZRSREE - IRAE
T -

BF 5-10%

FHEWERE 20%HIEHE
FH (A8
mEAE)

PAEFRE 18%-25%

BT
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e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within administrative expenses in
the consolidated income statement.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is up-front payments to acquire
long-term interest in leasehold land, which are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land from
the date when the respective rights were granted.
Amortisation of leasehold land is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease and
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
within administrative expenses.

Impairment of investments in a subsidiary
and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each balance sheet date.

2 FESTHEHMEE)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Y BERREGE)
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e MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.8 Financial assets

2 FESHHERBME(E)
2.8 SREE

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for those that are not
expected to be realised within the normal operating
cycle of the EFT-POS terminal solutions business.
These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivables are included in trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, restricted cash
and cash at bank and on hand in the consolidated
balance sheet (Notes 2.12 and 2.13).

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs and are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The Group assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
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e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

2 FESTHEHMEE)

29 SR T B

78

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that
there is objective evidence of an impairment loss
include:

e Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;

e A breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e The group, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
granting to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;
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e MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued) 210 EMEERE (&)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued) BBIEA AT EEE(B)
e |t becomes probable that the borrower o ERABABEHESETT
will enter bankruptcy or other financial BB S ER ;

reorganisation;

e The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;

or

e Observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets
since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified
with the individual financial assets in the

portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of

borrowers in the portfolio;

(i) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence

of impairment exists.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
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rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

2 FESHBERBE(®)
210 S BMEERME (8)
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 2.12.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary or associate
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials
and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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e MR EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Trade, bills and other receivables

2 FESTHRESME®)

QNEWERR - EREER H A

Trade, bills and other receivables including retention
money receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade,
bills and other receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables. Significant financial
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and
default or delinquency in payments are considered
indication that the receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the assets is reduced through the use of an
allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
within administrative expenses. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Cash at bank and on hand

Cash at bank and on hand include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.15 Trade payables

2 FESTHEHMEE)

2.15 TR

82

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and issue of borrowings including fees
and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and
securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.
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Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless EBREEARSAEE  BRIER
the Group has an unconditional right to defer SEEHEEKHEHEELIRS
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after HEEHERD12EAFERNE
the balance sheet date. all ol
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHBEEESE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax 217 EFIRIELEFREH
The tax expense for the year comprises current and REEHERAXBREE LR
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated JETRIA - BN AR S U e K B8
income statement, except to the extent that it relates R BIELSBEBREMEER
to items recognised directly in other comprehensive mIE NEERRNEE AR
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is wHIIEBBRIN o FERLBERT -
also recognised in other comprehensive income or I IR B P B Ath 2 T Uk 2 3k
directly in equity, respectively. BENERNER °
The current income tax charge is calculated on EHMEHREHRBERRR R
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively AKAGINBARIEENRELNE
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries ABBANBRRNEEBRE
where the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries BB E RIS AR E
operate and generate taxable income. Management o BEBEREANE AN
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns ERTIR R MG R T B AR
with respect to situations in which applicable tax KA - WEERIE R TIRE
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes T8 HA 78 ) 156 765 14 A < 15T B B K
provisions where appropriate on the basis of RERME

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the RS EERB ER
liability method, on temporary differences arising MENEBEEHEBERAH
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and Mg SmaTHREERSS
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial TRER LNBEEER - A
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not im: WREMEHRIIEEER
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an T (EEE PRI - mE
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business MR SWEEE S ERT
combination that at the time of the transaction wmAEE - TR -k
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. EFTEB T AR & E Bl E 3k
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates EEHERNRER(RED)E
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively T WIEEARNE IR AEELRT
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected BHREENEBERELHEHREA
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset EEEA -

is realised or the deferred income tax liability is

settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the IRIEPTIS T & E R R LA TE 5
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit H & 7] g 1 3R B SR A A1 A 1
will be available against which the temporary HIHERERE AR -

differences can be utilised.

83



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BEBMMNEEARAT « —E—SEERH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

2 FESTBEHMEE)

217 EMRIEEFMBH (8)
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Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision, where appropriate, is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued) 218 EERF(B)
(b) Pension obligations (b) BIkLEM

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Pension Scheme”) set up
pursuant to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the Pension
Scheme. The assets of the Pension Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to
the Pension Scheme, except for the Group’s
employer voluntary contributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as an employee
benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Pension obligations (continued)

2 FESTBEHMEE)

218 EEER(E)
(b) BUk2EF (&)
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(c)

In addition, pursuant to the government
regulations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), the Group is required to
contribute an amount to certain retirement
benefit schemes based on approximately 7%
to 20% of the wages for the year/period
of those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of those
employees of the Group. Contributions to these
retirement benefits schemes are charged to the
consolidated income statement as incurred.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2 FESTHRESME®)

2.18 Employee benefits (continued) LI8EEEF (E)
(d) Share-based compensation (d) BRAEM %

The Group operates a equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted, excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).

e including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

e excluding the impact of any service
and non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability, sales
growth targets);and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement
for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At the balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.18 Employee benefits (continued)

2 FESTBEHMEE)

218 EEEA(E)
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(d) Share-based compensation (continued)
When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and
share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over
its equity instruments to the employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group
is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair
value, is recognised over the vesting period
as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition 2.20 WA FERR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the EERBORAEENATEED
consideration received or receivable for the sale RIHEE Rk EE ERKES
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group's NFE - FIRERED HRIE
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, B RE - @OEFM I
returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating FHEEBRNEERMEE -

sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount EEEBLHEMASEITE
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable BARREBENRA AT BERAR
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity EEH WERHEAEERSER
and when specific criteria have been met for each FaT B9 (@ Bl {5 (20~ SCRTit)
of the Group’s activities as described below. The B NEBEBERBA - RE
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking EEREBEENFEETZEER
into consideration the type of customer, the type of PR RSEHENESELTH
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement. RS E (AT -
(a) Sales of goods (a) HEEm
Sales of goods are recognised when a group BEEEETEERNER
entity has delivered products to the customer, FTEFEAEFEWNE SR
the customer has accepted the products and FF - BEIEREE ] LAY
collectibility of the related receivables, including FE B8 FE W 3 T8 (B FE FE U
retention money receivables, is reasonably JEHa%) BERHEE
assured. BEmlilA o
(b) Sales of service (b) HERH
Revenue from fixed-price contracts is generally REBETERE N EE
recognised in the period in which the services BRI EHREHER
are provided, using the straight-line basis over BHEANILE G LA EER
the terms of contracts. R o
(c) Interest income (c) FIEKA
Interest income is recognised on a time- FE WA A BB )£ 1%
proportion basis using the effective interest i I LE DI HERR o
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

2.22 Value added tax refund
Value added tax refund are recognised in other
income in the consolidated income statement when
there is a reasonable assurance that the refund will
be received which generally occurs upon the receipt
of value added tax refund from the local tax bureau.

2.23 Government grants
Grants from the government for high-tech
companies are recognised in “other income” in the
consolidated income statement at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
the attached conditions.

2.24 Research and development
Research expenditure is expensed as incurred.

2.25 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREE

3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 BIEKREE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of AEEMEHSEBIEES
financial risks: foreign exchange, credit risk and HEOEER  INERR - EE
liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management REkRBERR - NEH
programme focuses on the unpredictability WEBEREETIHE ISR
of financial markets and seeks to minimise ISR R TR - SR
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial N B B RS R I FTIER A A
performance. TERERK -
(a) Foreign exchange risk (a) SME/R B

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in RMB, HK$ and United
States dollar (“USD"). The majority of assets
and liabilities are denominated in RMB, HK$
and USD, and there are no significant assets
and liabilities denominated in other currencies.
The Group is subject to foreign exchange rate
risk arising from future commercial transactions
and recognised assets and liabilities which are
denominated in a currency other than HKS$,
RMB or USD, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign
exchange risk with respect to USD is not
significant as HK$ is pegged to USD and
transactions denominated in USD are mainly
carried out by entities with the same functional
currency. The exchange rate of RMB to HK$
is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by
the PRC government. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2010, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all
other variables held constant, profit for the
year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$1,798,000 (2009:
HK$51,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of HK$ denominated cash at bank
and on hand and trade receivables as well as the
current account with related parties.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to equity securities
price risk and commodity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its trade, bills and other receivables, restricted
cash and deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade, bills and other
receivables, restricted cash and deposits
with banks represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

3

BEEMREE (&)
3.1 IREBREE (&)
(a) HMERE (&)

(b)

(c)

WBTHARBEEF
B5% @ 1M FTA Hitha] &
EREFTE  AAR=Z
—ZEF+=A=+—H"
NE B F RGN & E
mEE R, A4
1,798,000 8 L (ZEZE N,
#F:51,0008 L) £Z
ThEIE 5 A T E R R
TRkFLERSY - BUER
RREAESAREEES
b 50m F BB ER o
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7N 55 [ I 4 1 4 A RE o5
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EE @b

N5 B A BH R AR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UXEERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 EEBEE (&)
(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EEREE (&)

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and credit-worthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the authorisation of credit limits to
individual customers and recoverable amount
of each individual trade receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales of goods and services to the top five
customers constituted 61.2% (2009: 74.3%)
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 December 2010. They accounted for
approximately 80.9% (2009: 82.7%) of
the gross trade receivable balances as at 31
December 2010. Collections of outstanding
receivable balances are closely monitored on an
ongoing basis to minimise such credit risk.

RERZRAR - AEEH
FREZHEAEE S B
BRAERFEEMRIT
REE T B E BERIARELR
HETHAMNEYRE
hERESRXNEE
BN L EHRNRNEER
HEP - HEEMEE
T2 FF A BEOR BRER R AEF5 1
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SETEREZEATFH
15 F IR SR = 1 I 3 TR {E A
& U BR K B AT Y [B] 2 BB
PATE R B B A] Wi [l 5018
FHETE D HRERE 1R ©

AEBBEESTRRE -
HE_Z—ZF+=A
=+—HLEFE mAK
BEFEHEENEMERE D
Al EEE K E61.2%
(ZZEZNF :743%) ©
BRER_T—ZTF+=A
= +—HBhREWIERRE
B2%4180.9% (ZZETNF -
82.7%) o YLER M RIEE FE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRERERE (&)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 ERREE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) ZEEZ/ERE

94

With prudent liquidity risk management, the
Group aims to maintain sufficient cash at
bank and on hand and ensure the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank
borrowings. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group’s finance
department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash at bank
and on hand and flexibility in funding through
having available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities
over and above the balance required for
working capital management are transferred
to interest bearing bank deposits with
appropriate maturities to manage its overall
liquidity position. As at 31 December 2010,
the Group maintained cash at bank and on
hand of approximately HK$1,066,526,000
(2009: HK$242,380,000), that are expected to
be readily available and sufficient to meet the
cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence,
management considers that Group’s exposure
to liquidity risk is not significant.

The table below analyses the Group and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
into relevant maturity grouping based on the
remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying values as the
impact of discounting is not significant.

BERBERNOADESRAR
Bl AEBYNERFR
RORITEFLERE
KEBREMETH(E
REMBRTER) REE
T ARMEEEFNSZE
HE - AEERE P
BBERTTRERTR
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e
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HHER SHEALR
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T S 4 ¢ 242,380,00078
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UXEERERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 EEBEE (&)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) nEBELREE (E)

Less than
1 year Total
PRA—F et
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET
Group AEH
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—H
Trade payables FERTER K 143,033 143,033
Other payables and E At /I8 I JE 5 K18
accruals 55,735 55,735
Total st 198,768 198,768
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZEAF+-_A=+—8H
Trade payables JERTBR TR 86,912 86,912
Other payables and o FE N FRIB R FEET B
accruals 41,322 41,322
Total FEh 128,234 128,234
Less than
1 year Total
PRA—F et
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FHET
Company NN
At 31 December 2010 RZZE—ZEF+=-_A=+—H
Other payables and A T R IE I FE 5T FR1E
accruals 4,378 4,378
Total HEt 4,378 4,378
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BRRABERSE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BREBEE (&)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FIEEfE

The income and operating cash flows of the REE KRR RRBWA K
Group and the Company are both substantially RSN Re KD TS
independent of changes in market interest MSMEEBHTE K&
rates. Both the Group and the Company has no ERARQRIMEERGE
significant interest-bearing assets, except for BE(GFRBITHFERR
deposits placed with banks. HGR) o

As at 31 December 2010, if interest rates on RZZTE—-—ZFTF+ A
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits =+—H  WABFER
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with RITRBReFERNIES
all other variables held constant, profit for the MR A 100 18 5 25 B
year and equity of the Group would have been EEMEEERFTE  Z
HK$10,665,000 (2009: HK$2,424,000) higher/ FREAE N M AR EE /2
lower respectively, due to higher/lower interest e e E 17 AT RERAY
income earned on the deposits. B ASE IR Bl

# 9 @ 410,665,000
B Z B E N F
2,424,000 7T) °

As at 31 December 2010, if interest rates on WRZZE-—ZTF+ A
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits =+—H  WABFER
had been 100 basis points higher/lower with RITRBReFERNIES
all other variables held constant, profit for MR A 100 18 2 25 B
the period from 15 February 2010 (date of BEMEHERTE

incorporation) to 31 December 2010 and —E-ETF_-_A+HH
equity of the Company would have been (MR ZBE) EE =T
HK$6,971,000 higher/lower respectively, due —ZEF+-_A=+—H1t
to higher/lower interest income earned on the HARE 6008 A Se R A Bl 4
deposits. A=, MERF R R

BN FE A3 0, R
6,971,000 87T °

3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBER
The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. AEEBERREZRASE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital Ko REEEEBEARANBN A
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue REAEEBEBENSBLS
as a going concern in order to provide returns for XABRRERBESRANAEM
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and MeBEESRAE - W HAE
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce BREBNEBURVESK
the cost of capital. i
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, REFIABRERERE A&
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid ErRAEARRZMRENE®
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue B KBERNRETHRE - %
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. THBRNIEHEEEARDE
I5 o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UXEERERE)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total
borrowings divided by total equity. As at 31
December 2009 and 2010, the Group had no
borrowings, the gearing ratio is not applicable.

3.3 Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities including cash at bank and on hand,
restricted cash, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, trade payables, other payables
and accruals approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the
consolidated financial statements are evaluated based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes
estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial period are discussed below.

3.2 EXERERE (&)
NEBRBEEAE B REERE
BAR - BRBELLRTIZMER
BER AR REE - K&
BER_ZEENFR_FT—ZF
+-A=t+—RBYEEE &
NEELRATEB -

3.3 D F{EMF

HRBHEEE  AEESH®
BEMBB(BREITLETF L
He  XRHIRE - BERR
REWRE  Be LKEMER
IR - AR - E B
B R FEET AR A K f5 50) B9 BR
E{EEREANFERS -

BERETHAR RAE

PR e Bi7 & M B R w5t e #)
i DENBEERMEMEE
ERBEHAREARIBATHEES
BEHRHEMMIEL - AEBE(E
B AR T MR - UL
£ PHEMERH AR D EEHEN
BERERAR - FXATAm AT &
BRI N — EM KRB E
HEENEIEERERTE -
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Determination of functional currency

Before the Listing of the Company on 20 December
2010, as the Company has no operation and no
financing activity and its primary sources of income
is only from its PRC subsidiary and its ability to pay
dividend to shareholders is heavily dependent on
the economy of its PRC subsidiary, the Company
determined its functional currency as RMB.

Following completion of the Listing of the Company
on 20 December 2010, the cash generated
through the financing activity, namely the Global
Offering, by the Company is denominated in HK$.
The management of the Company reassessed the
Company’s functional currency and determined
that HK$ is more appropriate as the Company'’s
functional currency.

4 EEETHEET RFE ()
(a) FREHRIEZER K

BISHETERER - FEF
HEZNHE - EREEBKBE
BF: FE2RXHLEFAENR
RETRTHEEN - EREHN
MRERASNLESETE
R ARERESEEET R
Y FTS AR MR AR SR o

EEEERRERRAR B
FERTa M AR SHE By £ £ 58
SR ERARBERE - AR
TEREZEMNBEERNVE
JERIRE BE T IARERR - BRR(E
FAEERAENR -

EEEEY
RARBEZZTE—ZTF+_-A
Z+HEMAT ARARRL
muoEER A EE  BHE
FERAREEFPBEKE QT
K E m R RIR R SR DR
RIZE KRB BB QR AL
BRI MARBEBEEAAR
MIERTIREE -

RARBEZZE—ZTF+_-A
“+HREK ET® - ARRE
SEREEE (AIEREE)W
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BHAQNAINEEE R EITER
WEEAETEBEEGIEAARNAT
MIh L EEE -



PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2010
BERRBEERAE « —2—2FFRK

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRHE

5 REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 5 EXFRHEMEA
The Group is principally engaged in the sale of EFT-POS REETEZNEHEEFT-POSEmM
products and provision of related services. Revenue and MAREARRBRT - RERFEEC R
other income recognised during the year were as follows: RO EEERAMPALT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—BHLEE

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue = -
Sales of electronic HEBFZNEM
payment products 709,350 479,368
Sales of electronic HEEB TR
payment services 14,260 13,574
.....723,610 492,942
Other income Hag A
Interest income B WA 928 271
Value added tax refund (Note (i)) RiEIZED (ML () 25,039 6,424
Subsidy income EELLON 392 386
Others Hfb 1,031 3,398
_________ 27,390 10479
751,000 503,421
Note (i) The amount represents the Group’s entitlement MizE() ZoZIEAEENTRHIEE
to value added tax refund in relation to sales of BEEHETHERMEARR
self-developed software products in the PRC. EIER o
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management reviews the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resource.
Management has determined the operating segments
based on the internal reports reviewed by the Board of
Directors are used to make strategic decisions. The Group
is principally engaged in the EFT-POS terminal solutions
business, management considers that the Group
operates in one single business segment.

The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong, Macao and Taiwan) and the
United States of America (“US"). Management assesses
the performance of the Group from a geographic
perspective based on the location in which revenues are
generated.

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of segment operating
profit/(loss).

B EEMAEBAIRE AT
FRWHEER - EREERERE
EeMERAUEERRENR
HMEMBTHEEDE - AEE=E
BREEFTPOSKRImEARIR T ZE
% ERERBIEBELEE %
fﬁz '\7I—§ °

AEBEXTERNEE PE(IAEHE
FE-RMARGE) REB(XE
B)&= EEBREAER
ELEXBENUEFNGAEENRK
IH o

EEERERBA D BEEE R
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEEBR(E)

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results during the REBFERAEBIZSBEDH

year by segment is as follows: EEBREENSIWT -

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-2-Zf+t-A=1-ALEE

PRC,

other than

Hong Kong,

Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total

HE (BE

AR
KERM) BB ES= 1 B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TR

Revenue from external customers  REMIEFH L5 566,340 153,893 3,377 - 723610
Inter-segment revenue PEREER 86,219 6,281 - (92,500) -
Total revenue BEEE 652,559 160,174 3,377 (92,500) 723,610
Segmental EBITDA PERFE  HE FER
BHRI AR ([EBITDA]) 149,640 42572 (16,248) (843) 175,121

Depreciation e (2,133) (35) (440) - (2,608)
Amortisation B (5) - - - (5)
Segment operating profit/(loss) AL EET]/(EE) 147,502 42,537 (16,688) (843) 172,508
Finance costs BEKA -
Profit before income tax BRETEHATRR 172,508
Income tax expense FrEHR< (27,085)
Profit for the year FEREH 145,423
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEERGE)
Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-EZhE+-A=t-HLEE

PRC,

other than

Hong Kong,

Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total

HE (B

RMK
-3 B E3E] K Eak
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEL FEL FEL FHEL
Revenue from external customers  RESNIEFHEEE 405,402 86,033 1,507 - 492,942
Inter-segment revenue PEREER 56,432 1,580 - (58,012) -
Total revenue At 461,834 87,613 1,507 (58,012) 492,942
Segmental EBITDA S FEBITDA 103,766 6,386 (7,599) (118) 102,435
Depreciation e (1,809) (11) (98) - (1,918)
Amortisation B (5) - - - (5)
Segment operating profit(loss)  HRRELET]/(EE) 101,952 6,375 (7,697) (118) 100,512
Finance costs BEMKK (429)
Profit before income tax BRETERAT R R 100,083
Income tax expense FiERRX (15,532)
Profit for the year FRRF 84,551
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER(E)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+_A=+—H®S
and additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 HEENABBUREBE-_ZT—ZTF
December 2010 are as follows: +ZA=+T—HIFEFRHEE
HOREIT

As at 31 December 2010
R-ZE-Z5+-A=+-H

PRC,

other than

Hong Kong,

Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total

HE (BE

B K
KERM) BB %8 i L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TER

Segment assets NEEE 678,637 1,857,919 7,958 (1,039,154) 1,505,360

Segment liabilities GEELE 187,201 40,971 33,812 (43,735 218,249

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-BFt-A-1t-HLHFE
PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total
HE (B
B R
ABRMN) & E3: e B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr Tar TAr FET

Additions to non-current assets  FEREIEENRE 3,228 9% 1,236 - 4,560
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEEHR®E
The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2009 RZEZNF+_A=+—HBHHD
and additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 HEENABUREBZ_ZEZTNTF
December 2009 are as follows: +ZA=+—BLFEIERBDEE
HIREBEWT

As at 31 December 2009
R-ZZENE+ZA=1-H

PRC,

other than

Hong Kong,

Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total

HE (B

BMR
AEKRM) BB EY: i B
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TR T TR

Segment assets PEEE 485,777 146,144 1843  (68,057) 565,707
Segment liabilities PEEE 143,299 28267 11,009  (39,929) 142,646

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-BZNF+-A=t-BLFE
PRC,
other than
Hong Kong,
Macao and
Taiwan Hong Kong US Elimination Total
HE(FS -
B R
AR B £H B am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TER TER TET

Additions to non-current assets  JERBEEMAE 1,446 17 1379 - 2,842
Segmental EBITDA represents operating profit before S¥REBITD AEHIBRBMEKA « AT
finance costs, income tax expense, depreciation of BHAX X BELRRETE
property, plant and equipment and amortisation AREE + B ATA A & A o
of leasehold land. Segment assets consist primarily PHEEETEREDE BERR
of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, e MEETH  FE BRERKE
inventories, trade and bills receivables, deposits and FEUNZENE - e M EMEU KA -
other receivables, restricted cash and cash at bank and XBREFEEUARBITRF LRS-
on hand. Segment liabilities consist primarily of trade PHEBETIEEEENER Bt
payables, other payables and accruals. FRIA - Efth A FRIE R FERTRUE o
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 DEER®E
Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to IERBEEARNBERITEME BE
property, plant and equipment. RBREORE °
The revenues from external parties reported to the ERTEHEREBNES Z2INIAL
directors of consolidated entities are measured in a EETEHBARGENER B
manner consistent with that in the consolidated income EETE o
statement.
The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC AEEBFENEE PEKEER
and US. AT o

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RMEESHNEX
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses and SFAEERA « HER ST MITHFA
administrative expenses are analysed as follows: SHRZ ST

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—BHLEE

2010 2009
—E-BF —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FBTT
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN € 721 557
Depreciation of property, =N
plant and equipment (Note 15)  :&#H#TE (M35 15) 2,608 1,918
Amortisation of leasehold land A& b 4 (FizE 16)
(Note 16) 5 5
Employee benefit expenses EERMAX (B
(including directors’ EEME)(FIEE9)
emoluments) (Note 9) 68,592 39,981
Costs of inventories sold (Note 18) & H1F&RA (H5F 18) 418,005 286,685
Operating lease rentals BFKEEEEE
in respect of buildings 5,446 3,264
Research and development costs 2% 7K 34,899 24,149
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - KE
plant and equipment REHER
(Note 26(b)) (P 5T 26(b)) 84 6
Provision for impairment of JE W BR SR E
trade receivables (Note 19(c)) B (M5 19(0)) 374 422
Donation B 1,000 -
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8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS 8 EFEE
The net foreign exchange loss recognised in BHE_T-—ZTF+_A=+—HI
administrative expenses for the years ended 31 December FE RTINS P B SR I S
2010 amounted to HK$3,085,000 (2009: HK$668,000). 1B #3,0850008 (=TT N
% : 668,000 7T) °
9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEAFAX (BIEESMH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) )
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—BHLEE
2010 2009
—E-TF —TTHHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Wages and salaries TERF® 62,277 37,013
Social security and pension costs &R iR K& AR 6,315 2,968
68,592 39,981
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EERTAX (BREESH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS) )&
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM <
The Directors’ emoluments during 2009 and REEMEREREEEERE
2010 are both equivalent to key management HfE1E -

compensation.

The remuneration of each executive director of the REBFE  ARASHITE
Company during the year are set out below: =0T -

Year ended 31 December 2010
BE-Z-BH4-A=1-HIEFE
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary to pension
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus  scheme Total
EXHEAE
BEnE we e BRERAL MR aE
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TET TEL TET TET TR

Executive Directors HITES
Nie Guoming =B 32 643 231 5 911
Jiang Hongchun BtE 29 317 231 8 585
Li Wenjin FNE 26 - - - 26
87 960 462 13 1,522
Independent Non-Executive Directors B E#H{TES
(Note (i)) (PEE())
Yip Wai Ming 28 3 - - -
Wu Min RE 3 - - -
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles N E 3 - _ _
9 . . . 9
96 960 462 13 1,531
Note: (i) The independent non-executive directors were MEE: () BYFERTESHR -
appointed on 1 December 2010. There was no —ZEZF+-_HA-HEZ
independent non-executive director in 2009. F-RZZETZNFUE
BUIEMITESE
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEAMX (BIEESMH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) £)E)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) ESEEE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2009
BE-BRENFT-AZt-HLEEE
Employer's
contribution
Discretionary to pension

Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus  scheme Total
EXHEAE
BEnA ae e WBTA  EMR ag

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TR TER TR

Executive Directors HTES
Nie Guoming =B - 661 - 6 667
Jiang Hongchun B - - - - -
Li Wenjin ENE - - - - -
- 661 - 6 667
In addition to the directors’ emoluments disclosed PR ECGRBENESMEIN - A
above, the following directors received emoluments TEFERGWEBE - &9
from Hi Sun, part of which was in respect of their R AR & A AN 5 B 1R A A AR
services to the Group. No apportionment has been B-EBEERR BRBZER
made as the directors consider that it is impracticable BAERFRASEESGIRMH
to apportion these amounts between their services B AR 7% 2 I 1E B o B 3 1 /]
to the Group and their services to Hi Sun. 7 A EIEL BB
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEFMX(BIEESMH
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) )&
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(a) EEM= (&)

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—BHLEE

2010 2009

—E-BF —TThF

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAET

Li Wenjin BNE 2,342 2,392
Nie Guoming EE A - 2,000
2,342 4,392

During the year ended 31 December 2010, Jiang
Hongchun had received HK$546,000 (2009:
HK$1,106,000), from Hi Sun in relation to his
capacity as director and employee of certain
subsidiaries of Hi Sun. He has resigned from all such
directorships and employment with these companies
on or before the listing of the Company on 20
December 2010.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, no
directors of the Group waived any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
(2009: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which the directors
agreed to waive any emolument during 2009 and
2010.

Ek:i:—; ::235_1_ H
_+ BIEFE @ BRELE
SRETREEREHBET
MEARMEE B B E
546,000 T( —Z T T h F
1,106,000/87T) » AR =—ZF —
ZF+-_A=-t+HARA L™
RZAEBEZERARMNES
=

RBE-_ZT-—ZFF+ KA
=t HIEFE HEAKE
EEMELAME - AKER
BEREMNESINMESERR
Bl EI VNS S 9 El
ARG B I ) 22 B sl B 12
(ZZETNEF8|)-

NRIEBETNER T —TF
MEEERZ M%Eﬂwém
ZHE o
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110

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 included one Director (2009: one).
The emoluments payable to the remaining four
(2009: four) individual during the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances e R NREVET
and benefits in kind
Pension cost

BRIRE R

The emoluments fell within the following band:

< 48 51
0771 — 1,000,000 /& 7T

Emolument band
Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 /& 7T —2,000,000 % 7T
HK$2,000,001-HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 & 7T — 3,000,000 & JT

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 EEEFMX (EBIEEEMH

&) (&)
(b) ABBEH AL (H)

REBBE-_ZT-ZTF+ -1
“—t+—BLEFERERSFA
TEE—RZRER(ZETNF
— &) NFEEMNBTIEA
(ZZTNF - mE) AL
SHEHIWAT -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2010 2009
—®-¥F —TThA
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
5,366 4,264

60 12

5,426 4,276

M 5 R

Number of individuals

AE
2010 2009
—E-FF “EENEF
1 2
2 2
1 —
4 4
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10 FINANCE COSTS 10 @E R A

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—BHLEE

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Interest expenses on TEFAERX
bank borrowings - 429
11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1 FEHEX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—HLEE
2010 2009
—E-2F —_ZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FHET
Current income tax EPERFTS AN
— PRC enterprise income tax — B ERSH 18,174 14,532
— Hong Kong profits tax —BENED 8,050 1,000
Under provision in prior year BEFERETR 861 -
Income tax expense FrisHi 27,085 15,532
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of HE_Z—ZEF+_A=1T—H1k
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit FE - BANSHRBE G ER
for the year ended 31 December 2010. wmAMDRIEHE165%  (ZFF
NV 16.5%) EHI B o
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the SN R B SR IR F R EHERR
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of Ma MR A EE L EMERRKIRIT
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group MEE

operates.
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 FIEHEAX (E)

112

Pax Computer Shenzhen is located in the Shenzhen
Special Economic Zone. Pursuant to the Corporate
Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from 1 January 2008
(the “CIT Law"), Pax Computer Shenzhen is subject to
income tax at rate which will gradually increase from
18% in 2008 to 25% in 2012 over a 5-year transition
period unless preferential rate is applicable. Pax
Computer Shenzhen was qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise in 2009 under the EIT Law and is
eligible to enjoy a preferential tax rate of 15% for 3 years
from 2009. As such, the applicable enterprise income tax
rate of Pax Computer Shenzhen was 15% for the years
ended 31 December 2009 and 2010 respectively.

Pax Technology, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company in US,
was operating at a net loss position and did not have any
assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2010
(2009: Nil).

BB BRI R RN E
@ BRBER-_ZFZENF—H—HE
Mz P B EMSHE ([ BERST
FOED) - BB ERRYIBNFTE
HOMEFR T N\FH18% N
hEBERERHEBME_T——F
B25% - BEBEEAERIN o B
BHRECEMSHE BETEH
FHRZEZNF BRIt
¥ BZETNFR=-FHHEEE
BEH 15% WEBEBE - At - &
EEFNFR-_ZT-FTF+H
=+—HIFE  BEFAE#KFEI
HEAEEMERNER15% °

Pax Technology, Inc. (ANA Bz F 3
Be—HMBAR) R E_T—
EFE+ A=+ HLLFEHEBES
BERE UEREAERTRN(Z
TThE &) o
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits
of the consolidated entities in the respective jurisdictions
as follows:

Profit before income tax BR PS5 Al )

Tax calculated at domestic rates %NS A A& R

applicable to profits of WiRE B BR8N
the consolidated entities B R ERTIE

in the respective jurisdictions
Income not subject to taxation — HBZBANFLHYURA
Expenses not deductible for LA T = AT R
taxation purposes # 2
Unrecognised tax losses RERH T IEEE
Under provision in prior year T—FERETE

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.7%
(2009:15.1%) for the year ended 31 December 2010.
The change is mainly caused by a change in the
profitability of the Group entities.

12 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to
the extent of HK$8,397,000.

1

12

FriSBipa < (&)

7 S B A 15 B AT 1 0 B TR ERER
REAREERARENE RS
BRI METERES ENERD
BHZET

Year ended 31 December

BE+TZ-A=t—HLFE

2010 2009
—g-BF C—TINF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHR Tt
172,508 100,083
26,501 15,107
(4,727) (919)
1,947 189
2,503 1,155
861 -
27,085 15,532

BE-ZR—TE+-A=+—AL
FE - ﬂu%ﬂ?i’aﬂ)ﬁﬁzﬁwm
ZTEENF 1 151%) o BHEEF)
TEAREEERNANENESD
PITEL °

RRAESRHFEARLER
ARRBERAEABRMGEER

8,397,000 T Th A AN X B 89 BE 7%
KA SR
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 ERER
(a) Basic (a) EXFR

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 December 2010
used in the basic earnings per share calculation is
determined on the assumption that the 740,000,000
shares with par value of HK$0.1 each issued
upon the capitalisation issue and Reorganisation
(Note 1.1 and Note 22) had been in issue prior to
the incorporation of the Company, which is the
same assumption for the basic earnings per share
calculation for the year ended 31 December 2009.

FRERBF RN R RS
B ARMEAREZ G MR FA
B 17 & B IR0 #E 19 BT

B o
>t

TEBREARBFATERNE
E-FT-FTFF+_A=+—
HItFEEBTE @AM
EFHEE DRERERE
BT REMACK LI R22)
RFETHEREENCIBITY
740,000,000 % f% 17 B B A A
AR 2 ATETT - BER
LEMHEHE_EZENFE+=
A=+—HIEFEZ2EBRER

EFFT A 2 REAA R

Year ended 31 December
BE+—A=+—AHLLEE

2010 2009
—2-%F _TTNF

Profit attributable to equity RARIERFEA

holders of the Company FEAE & A (FET)

(HK$'000) 145,423 84,551
Weighted average number of B 17 E @A NN

ordinary shares in issue T8 (FhR)

(thousand shares) 748,548 740,000
Basic earnings per share BRERREF

(HK$ per share) (B85 T) 0.194 0.114
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 13 BRER (&)
(b) Diluted (b) #55

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has one
category of dilutive potential ordinary share, the
Over-allotment Option. For the Over-allotment
Option, a calculation is done to determine the
number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average market
share price of the company’s shares for the period
from the listing date (20 December 2010) to 31
December 2010 based on the monetary value of
the subscription right attached to outstanding Over-
allotment Option. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2010 is the same as the basic earnings
per share as the conversion of potential ordinary
shares in relation to the outstanding Over-allotment
Option would have an anti-dilutive effect to the basic
earnings per share.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2009 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as there is no potential ordinary shares for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

EREERFINAERA AR
REMETE LB T EES
LTRAFAECBITEBRN
INEFIE - RRFIEIT—HE
BETE SR EN L ER 8
A AEBERRER
T REEURAFEUER
AR ETBEEE(ZZE—
TF+_AZTRHR)E=F—
EFE+_A=+—BHHEH
FHMEEE)BANRSDE
B - EREM®RITEBERELE
RIEF RN RBESEER
YELETE - METERBARM &
B & W{R R EITF B R AR E
MEITRIRR (D 8L B EH LLER ©

HE-_T—ZEF+-_A=1+—
BIEFEzERBERFEET
BRERZNER - T EER
B ARITEBRERRESR
BELBRESHSRELR
FEERBEZFE -

HE_ZTTAF+ZA=1—
BIEFEzEREERAEEG
BRERZBNER - L HEHZE
—EENFTA=T—HL
FEWEBEL LB -

14 DIVIDENDS 14 RE
During the year, no dividends were declared by the REBFE  AHERTERNAES
consolidated entities to their then respective shareholders HEEHREERRE(ZEZEN

(2009: Nil). F

&) -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 M% - BERRE

Office
Leasehold furniture
improve- and Plant and Motor
Buildings ments equipment equipment  vehicles Total
WAE
HE &R BE
BF  MERE PET] R&E RE @5t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TaER TERT TET TER TER TERT
At 31 December 2008 RZZZN\FT-A=1—H
Cost KA 6,819 943 4,194 1,394 1809 15,159
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (2,001) (453)  (2,823)  (1,032) (600)  (6,909)
Net book amount EmFE 4,818 490 1,371 362 1,209 8,250
Year ended 31 December 2009 HZ-TFfF
TZA=t-HLLEE
Opening net book amount BB EFE 4,818 490 1,371 362 1,209 8,250
Additions NE - - 1,952 - 890 2,842
Depreciation (Note 7) e (s7) (607) (189) (668) (129) (325 (1,918)
Disposals (Note 26(b)) & (BT 26(b) - - (6) - - (6)
Closing net book amount HRERE (A 4,211 301 2,649 233 1,774 9,168
At 31 December 2009 R_EZNE+-A=1+—H
Cost KR 6,819 943 6,116 1,394 2,699 7,971
Accumulated depreciation 2EMiE (2,608) (642)  (3,467)  (1,161) (925)  (8,803)
Net book amount FHFE 4211 301 2,649 233 1,774 9,168
Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-ZT—ZF
TZA=T—BLEFE
Opening net book amount ~ H3IEREH(E 4,211 301 2,649 233 1,774 9,168
Additions NE - - 2,742 342 1,476 4,560
Depreciation (Note 7) & (s7) (620) (192) (1,085 (108) (603)  (2,608)
Disposals (Note 26(h)) & (FizE26(0) - - (33) - (284) (317)
Exchange differences EHESE 153 40 88 18 92 391
Closing net book amount HRREFE 3,744 149 4,361 485 2,455 11,194
At 31 December 2010 WZE-FF+ZA=1T—H
Cost XA 7,143 988 8,905 1,812 3,704 22,552
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (3,399) (839)  (4544)  (1,327)  (1,249)  (11,358)
Net book amount REFE 3,744 149 4,361 485 2,455 11,194
All depreciation of the Group’s property, plant and NEEWE  MENRENRRETT

equipment has been charged to administrative expenses. ECAITHRAX -
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15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The banking facilities granted to the Group have expired
before 31 December 2010 which were secured by certain
property, plant and equipment of the Group. The Group
has not renewed the banking facilities expired. As at 31
December 2010, the release of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group with an aggregate net carrying
value of HK$3,893,000 (2009: HK$4,512,000) from
the security for the banking facilities expired was still in
process, which has been completed subsequent to 31
December 2010.

LEASEHOLD LAND

The Group's interests in leasehold land represent upfront
payments for land and their net carrying values are
analysed as follows:

Opening net carrying value HAFARTEDF B
Amortisation (Note 7) g (M 7)
Exchange difference ME 4 =58

Closing net carrying value HARAREDFE

All of the Group’s leasehold land are located in the PRC
and are held on leases of between 10 to 50 years. All
amortisation of the Group’s leasehold land has been
charged to the administrative expenses.

The banking facilities granted to the Group have expired
before 31 December 2010 which were secured by
leasehold land of the Group. The Group has not renewed
the banking facilities expired. As at 31 December 2010,
the release of leasehold land of the Group with an
aggregate net carrying value of HK$231,000 (2009:
HK$225,000) from the security for the banking facilities
expired was still in process, which has been completed
subsequent to 31 December 2010.

15

16

M BERRE

REBUETYE - BE REKEBE
EHNRTREER-ZE—FF
+=-—A=+—H8%H- Kﬁlﬁﬁ
BHOHEERITRE - RZF—
F+-_A=+—8" $%l%%@
F 18 A3,893,0008 L( —Z 2T 1
¢-4mzmm%iﬂm%¥ % 7=

BB ARFHRE D HRITRIE K
#H RZE-—ZFF+A=+—H
1% 77 BRBR o

HE i
$Elﬁﬁ%imm%\him—
RMARTER - HEEFEANOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BHLFE

2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FEIT
225 230

(5) (5)

11 -

231 225

ARENEE L EMUNTE - H
HIB10E50%F - AREHE AP

BEHHE S AITHAX

AEEUHEE T EEFNRTRE
ER-_ZE—ZFTF+_A=+—HF
B REBERBEEHMD I HIRITR
B -R-_E—ZEF+-_A=+—8"
REEBREFE A 231,000 (=
TZNEF 0 225,0008 ) A E L
TARBRE R HIRITRHERE R

E-TFE+_A=t—HKC2#EREF -
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17 INVESTMENT IN A SUBSIDIARY 17. B AR ZRE
As at 31
December 2010
R-E-2F
+=A=+—8
HK$°000
TR
Investment, at cost: ®E - mKARHE
Unlisted shares I LTk 528,103
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—FTF+-_A=+—H  *
December 2010: EWBARICBEMNAT :
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of issued and
and type of legal entity  place of operation paid up/registered capital Interest
Name AL 2 TEEER BREITRAE/ held
£ RETERER B HEMEAREE kR
Grand Global British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 2 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%(#)
International Limited limited liability company Hong Kong 2REREEIET 2 LBR
REBRIHE  BRAR  HEABRBREERR
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Sales of EFT-POS products 26,250,000 ordinary shares 100%
AEREERAR company and provision of related of HK$1 each, 8,750,000
&8 BRAA services in Hong Kong series A preference shares
TEBBHEEFT-POSER K of HK$1 each; 8,750,000
REAE RS series B preference shares of
HK$1 each;
26,250,000/ BAREE1E T
2 i@ - 8,750,0000% F
REE BT Z ZIABE
A% + 8,750,0000% SRR EE
B2 ZHBEEMR
EEREY U3 PRC, limited liability Development and sales HK$50,000,000 100%
BERAA company of EFT-POS products 50,000,000 7T
(Pax Computer FE - BRAA and provision of related
Technology (Shenzhen) services in the PRC
Co., Ltd)* TR B & R EEFT-POS
FE i R AR AR R AR T
Pax Technology, Inc. US, limited liability company ~ Sales of EFT-POS products ~ US$1,000 100%
X6 BRRA] in the US 1,000% 7T
XS EEFT-POSE @ &
AR RS
*  The English name of Pax Computer Shenzhen represents * EEEAEEE STEMEM ORYI) AR
the best effort by the management of the Group in NAWEERXAR AN - fE
translating its Chinese name as it does not have an official BNEBRRAEEETEENE
English name. A XA AT R RS S o
#  Interest held directly by the Company # ARREERBZES
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18 INVENTORIES

Raw materials R R
Work in progress TRE
Finished goods RURY Gh

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during
the year amounted to approximately HK$418,005,000
(2009: HK$286,685,000).

No provision for obsolete inventories was made during
the year. (2009: Nil).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 F&
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-2F —TTHhHF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
51,519 24,271
22,904 15,103
74,097 71,184
148,520 110,558

RAEFEE  HEXAFBENHFEE
B ZAN#495 418,005,000 8T ( —EF
H4E : 286,685,000 7T) ©

RAEE - BERREFEER
B(ZETNF:F)-

LRL

-
Ewae »

*
&
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 EWERFREREE - #E
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 5 H i fE W R IE
As at
31 December
R+=—HB=+-8H
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET FET
Trade receivables (Note (a)) U BR ZR (B IR PR I
EHeE) (ME@Q) 215,535 95,554
Less: provision for impairment of & : EUBRZUR BB
receivables (Note (c)) (MEE(0) (1,846) (2,608)
Trade receivables, net FEUWBRFUHEE 213,689 92,946
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEM =R (Bi5E (b)) 55,353 105,701
Trade and bills receivables FEW R M FE M =18 269,042 198,647
Deposits and other receivables B REMERRIE 7,001 2,989
Trade and bills receivables, FEMER R R E L
deposits and other receivables B REMERRIE 276,043 201,636

AEERVERNERRER 2
R B FE WA M BRI B TS IA T 51

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables are

denominated in the following currencies: EHesE
As at
31 December
R+=A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-FF “EENE
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 2,858 3,493
RMB AR 249,884 185,194
usD I 23,301 12,949
276,043 201,636
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 ERERFRREWEE - &€

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) R HAEWFRIE (&)

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, deposits and R-EENEFER_E—ZTFE+_H
other receivables approximated their carrying values as at =+—HB EBREZFRERRE-
31 December 2009 and 2010. re RHMEWERN A FEER

FREEMRS -

(a) Trade receivables (a) FEEWKERRX

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors range
generally from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms
of more than 180 days may be granted to customers
on a case-by-case basis upon negotiation. At 31
December 2009 and 2010, the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables is as follows:

Up to 90 days 90 HIAA

91 to 180 days 91&£180H
181 to 365 days 1812365 H
Over 365 days 365 HEAE

As at 31 December 2010, the trade receivables included
the retention money receivables of HK$39,480,000
(2009: HK$12,776,000) with a retention period of three
to five years for approximately 2% to 5% of the total
contract sum granted to certain number of our customers
in the PRC.

rEBHRTESEHANEER
HHZE180B 7% - A -
KIEREIZERBRARARF
RHBBI1SOHMEEH - ¥
—EENFRZE-ZTF T
A=+—8 ' BUREREZMHERR
DT -

As at 31 December

R+=RA=t+—H
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTTNH
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT TAT
119,898 61,009
44,268 20,862
31,362 8,960
20,007 4,723
215,535 95,554

RZE—FTF+A=+—
B BURERBEEKENS
639,480,000/ L(=ZEZ N,
% 12,776,000/ 7 ) * FEH
HAE-ZRTF  SRBEFTY
2% E5% IR TARBIE TS
FREEF -
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables (including retention

19 BUIRRREBEWRRE - &S
R E At FE WU R IR (48)
(a) EWRR(BEERENS

122

money receivables) (continued)

The Group’s sales are made to several major
customers and there is concentration of credit risks.
Sales of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted approximately 61.2% (2009: 74.3%)
of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2010 . They accounted for approximately
80.9% (2009: 82.7%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2010.

Receivables, were neither past due nor impaired
amounted to approximately HK$213,689,000 (2009:
HK$92,946,000) as at 31 December 2010.

As at 31 December 2010, no trade receivables were
past due but not impaired (2009: Nil).

) (&)

AEBHEENNBZETER
FEHEBEEETRAR - &
EZE—ZEF+ZRA=+—
BIEFE HAEAXEFPHEN
EmRIEEORBEERME
EBN612% (T NF:
743%) MER=_ZT—ZTF
T AZT—HMEREXR
HEBA809% (ZEENF -
82.7%) °

RZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—
H - B8 3R O A R B A R UK
HE(BEEERENSEE) D
213,689,000 L ( ZEZF 1
£ 192,946,000 7T) °

W-F-FF+-A=+-
B B WE S BERRERE
WHE(ZBBNE ) -
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19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 ERERFRREWEE - &€

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) R H At U FRIR ()

(b) Bills receivables (b) EWRZEE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with ZEEBIEREHE BNER A
maturity dates within six months. HERITHRHFIR o
The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the REBERKEEN DB RN
Group is as follows: e

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Up to 90 days 90 H AR 24,443 86,504
91 days to 180 days 91 HZ180H 30,910 19,197
55,353 105,701
(c) Provision for impairment of trade () EWRFRERE
receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment of FEWBRZURBE R EE ST

trade receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At beginning of the year REH] 2,608 2,186
Provision recognised in RERE W R ER
the consolidated income HyREE (e 7)
statement (Note 7) 374 422
Receivables written-off A A e [0 it 8
during the year Y FE R IE
as uncollectible (1,229) -
Exchange differences ME =5 93 -
At end of the year RER 1,846 2,608

123



L

i
: ! PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2010
- BERRNBERAT « —B—FFEEFRHR

e

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M BRRME

19 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19 ERERFREWEE - &£

AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) REAMEWFIE (&)

(c) Provision for impairment of trade () BWERFBERE (8)
receivables (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting RiksE B EBRHNRAEER
date is the carrying values of each class of receivables % 5 bt % A8 R ISR IE 89 BR
mentioned above. The Group did not hold any HE R_ZT—ZFF+_A
collateral as security for these receivables as at 31 —+t—B REBEWERZE
December 2010 (2009: Nil). ERFEBEFEEANERR(Z

TTNF &) -

The other classes within trade and bills receivables, R R EWEE Ha Kk
deposits and other receivables do not contain H {th e We sk IR /Y E A 38 Rl R I
impaired assets. BmOREEE -
20 RESTRICTED CASH 20 ZRERE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=A=+—8H
2010 2009
—B-2F _ITTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Restricted bank deposits ZRHIRITIFR 2,846 1,740
Restricted cash represented bank deposits of the Group ZREFIRSIEEEREAKRENE
which were placed as guarantee deposits for tenders and BRI U REETYTERHIERME
as securities for sales of goods to customers and were WERITIES - JIUAREESHE o
denominated in RMB.
As at 31 December 2010, the effective interest rate on R-_FE—FTF+_HA=+—8 %
restricted bank deposits were 0.36% (2009: 0.36%) RHISETEIANERMNE 55 E
per annum. All restricted cash were kept in the bank 036%( —ZFF NLF :036%) °
accounts opened with banks in the PRC as at 31 RN-_EBEENER - T—ZFF+ A
December 2009 and 2010, where the remittance of =+—H FIEXEFHREFMNE
funds is subject to foreign exchange control. PREARNETREYHSETEREES M

ERESNNESBISNEE S -
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21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND 21 |RITIRFLAS

Group as at Company as at
31 December 31 December
rEE NN
R+=A=+—-HB W+=A=+-—H
2010 2009 2010
—E-ZF —EBNE —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TERT TAET TER
Cast at bank and on hand RITAFLERE 843,149 203,071 547,082
Short-term bank deposits FEHIRITIF K 223,377 39,309 150,000
1,066,526 242,380 697,082
As at 31 December 2010, funds of the Group amounting R-ZE—ZFF+_HA=+—H" K
to HK$233,899,000 (2009: HK$166,140,000) were %8 5%0233,899,000 BT (—FF
deposited in bank accounts opened with banks in the JUEF : 166,140,000 % 7T ) 17 BUAE
PRC where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign B NRITHRZAIRITERE - MA

exchange control. FAESNEXFIMNEEH]
The effective interest rate per annum on short-term bank ANEFEHRITEIANETREF X
deposits of the Group was 0.53% (2009: 0.21%). These 7053% (ZEZNF :021%) °
deposits have an average maturity of 55 days (2009: 11 = ERESREA A H (=
days). The carrying amounts of cash at bank and on hand ZTAF:NMA) - RITKF LR
were denominated in the following currencies: SHEEEIID LTIt

B :

Group as at Company as at
31 December 31 December
r5HE NN
R+=A=t—-B W+=A=+-H
2010 2009 2010
—B-FF —TTNF —B-FF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT FTET
HK$ BT 746,713 14,405 697,052
RMB AR 229,022 162,503 -
usb e 89,751 64,432 -
Euro dollar BT 1,040 1,040 -
1,066,526 242,380 697,052
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21 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)
The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group
and the Company as at 31 December 2010 were
HK$1,066,291,000 (2009: HK$242,143,000) and
HK$697,082,000 respectively.

22 SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised share capital of the Company

21 RTRFLBE(H)
N-ZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H &
EBERARRZEREERBRS A
1,066,291,0008 T (ZZEF ALF -

242,143,0007% 7t ) & 697,082,000

BT e

22 BA

(a) ARFHEERAE

Authorised EE

On 15 February 2010, R-ZZE—ZFTF_A+hH
date of incorporation (FEfBACZ A ED)

Increase in authorised YETE IR ALE B

share capital

As of the date of incorporation, the initial authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$100,000
divided into 1,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each.

On 4 November 2010, the authorised share capital
was increased from HK$100,000 to HK$80,000,000
divided into 800,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each in preparation for the Reorganisation.

On 1 December 2010, the authorised share
capital was increased from HK$80,000,000 to
HK$200,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in preparation for
the Global Offering.

Year ended
31 December 2010
BE-Z—-Z5+=A

=+—HLFEE
Ordinary
Number of shares of
ordinary shares HK$0.1 each
BREEO0.1
HBERHE BrsEBER
HK$'000
TET
1,000,000 100
1,999,000,000 199,900
2,000,000,000 200,000

ReFfaz BER - KA R )
1655 F R 7N & 100,000 78 It
5 £ 1,000,000 A% F R EE 0.1
BITRE B -

—E-TF+—-HANBE - RE
#WEMH - ETERANR 100,000
7 7T E AN 2 80,000,000 78 7T
4 /800,000,000 % & f% E &
0.1 B TH L @A -

RZZE—ZEF+_H—H"
REBRIRBEE FERK
7N 180,000,000 JT # 40
% 200,000,000 7T 9 A
2,000,000,000 i &R EIE 0.1
BITHE B -
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) Issued share capital of the Company

22 R (&)
(b) KATME BEITRA

Year ended
31 December 2010
BE-2-BE =5

=t+—-HLEFE
Ordinary
Number of shares of
ordinary shares HK$0.1 each
BREEO.1
ZEREE BzEBER
HK$'000
THERT
Issued and fully paid EERITRER
On 15 February 2010, WRZE-TF-A+AHH
date of incorporation (FEfARSZ B ER) - -
Allotment of shares BB EAR RS (FE1.1)
pursuant to the
Reorganisation (Note1.1) 250,000,000 25,000
Share issued under the BRBERNMEEITZE 8T
capitalization issue (i) Bz 19 (i) 490,000,000 49,000
Shares issued pursuant BIBERIREE
to the Global Offering (i) ZE7TR%17 (ii) 260,000,000 26,000
1,000,000,000 100,000

(i)

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole
shareholder passed on 1 December 2010,
the directors were authorised to capitalise
HK$49,000,000 standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company
by applying such sum in paying up in full at
par 490,000,000 shares of the Company for
allotment and issue to holders of shares of
the Company on 1 December 2010 to their
respective shareholdings in the Company. The
shares to be allotted and issued shall rank pari
passu with all shares in issue.

On 20 December 2010, the Company issued
260,000,000 ordinary shares at HK$2.88 each
pursuant to the Global Offering as disclosed
in Note 1.1. The excess of issue price over the
par value of the ordinary shares were credited
to share premium, after deducted the share
issuance cost of HK$47,699,000.

(i)

BEE-—RENR_ZT—F
F+-_A—HBBMHEA
REE N_TE—TF
+-—A—BEEZEEH
KAaRR D= ERRKE
8§ & £049,000,0007% 7T
B - BEREERE
490,000,000 f% 1A A& A A
BB AZRESSER
iN/NEETE: 08 A S T ok 358
BT o 45 TR K2
ITHRM BETA B BT
MEBEFREER -

RZE—ZFTF+ A
—+HBH KAQAAFEKE
€ = R%2.88%8 T % 1T
260,000,000f% & /@ A%
(RN B sE11FTIR ER ) o
A0 BT KR
47,699,000/ 1% + 31T
ERALTBRAEBE KD
Tist AR D (B o
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(c) Over-allotment Option

In connection with the Global Offering, the
Company granted the Over-allotment Option to the
international underwriters of the Global Offering
("International Underwriters), exercisable by the
global coordinator of the Global Offering or their
agent on behalf of the International Underwriters
at any time from the listing date of the Company
up to (and including) the date which is the 30th
day after the last date for the lodging of application
forms under the public offer and preferential
offer. Pursuant to the Over-allotment Option, the
global coordinator or their agent had the right to
require the Company to allot and issue up to an
aggregate of 47,880,000 additional new shares of
the Company, representing in aggregate 15% of
the offer shares initially available under the Global
Offering and that these shares were issued at the
Offer Price.

On 12 January 2011, the Over-allotment Option
was partially exercised and the Company issued an
aggregate of 37,728,000 additional shares at the
Offer Price of HK$2.88 per share. Gross proceeds
in relation to the over-allotment amounted to
HK$108,657,000 was received by the Company on
17 January 2011. The remaining Over-allotment
Option not yet exercised was expired on 13 January
2011.

22 FRA (&)
(c) HBEEERE

MEREFEEMS - AAFAE
HEEBEREeEmE (TREE
SHPE ) IR B RRAC AR - AT R
EIRBEN2RBFAALER
BARKEESES) RAQ
A EMBHREERER AMAEE
RELFEERFREE LA
FBETE 30 B (B3EZ A ) LA
171 - IRIFHBREAERE - 23K
AR ERIEAGREERA
NAIREIINEE R BEITREZA S
47,880,000 Ix A~ BT AR 19
AEHRHEEREIRBEEETIL
AERBEERMNA15% @ I
HEREBRITHRERD -

RZTE——F—A+=H " H
AR AR #E (EEB 1T - M A
RAIAEEETAK2.88 B L%
77 & $£37,728,000 A% %8 5 A%
B RARARAIR_E——F—A
B UWEE BB R 2
FfT 15 3k T8 #8 %8 /108,657,000
PETT o BR N ARTTIE 2 HBER AL AR
BR_E——F—A+=H0%
By o
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22 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(d) Share option scheme

(i)

PAX Share Option Scheme

On 1 December 2010, the board of directors
of the Company approved a share option
scheme (the “PAX Scheme”) for the issuance
of in aggregate no more than 10% in nominal
amount of the aggregate of shares in issue on
the listing date of the Company, representing
100,000,000 shares (subject to the terms of the
scheme and the relevant provisions under the
Listing Rules).

The PAX Scheme was effective from 1
December 2010 for 10 years and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended. Upon to the
date of the approval of these consolidated
financial statements, no share option was
granted under the PAX Scheme.

Cancellation of share option scheme of a
subsidiary

On 27 April 2009, Hi Sun, the former controlling
shareholder of the Company, approved the
share option scheme for the issuance of such
number of ordinary shares in the capital of
Pax Technology (the “Pax Technology Share
Option Scheme"), a subsidiary of the Company,
representing no more than 5% of the total
number of shares in issue in the capital of Pax
Technology. On 6 December 2010, the board of
directors of Pax Technology terminated the Pax
Technology Share Option Scheme in accordance
with its scheme rules. No option was granted
under the Pax Technology Share Option Scheme
up to its termination on 6 December 2010.

22 R (&)
(d) BERREsE

(i)

(ii)

BB RS

R—ZE—ZEF+=-R—
B ARRIEESHE—
BERESE(EEER
BB HABITAET
R o N/NE T il = B T
TR 2T EH 10% (BN
100,000,000 f% f% 17 ) (18
BIRRBZAT B 2 G KRB
SFLEMRBIZEBBRE)

ZHEER T —ZTF
TZA—BAER BkES
TTHEESER] B RIZS
B EMEARETFH
F—EBEM - HEARSE
Bl YEREO=ESR
HEEDRT 8RB AE -

BUH T 8 A =] 8 BBt

£l

“EEAFWA-tL
B = (KA & Al
PR BER) #EE B BB TR
BERMEARARATAE
=R BT E) (K
NAEEKME AR A S
EREITHROAHETEBE
5% K H B R T AR
AR E - R=2F—F
F+-ARE - BERE
EFEREERAKL
BEMRERESE - &
EHEREERETER S
T-THFET-ARNBELL
Al R O R R AT 8l
TR -
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23 RESERVES
(a) Group

(i)

(ii)

Capital reserves
Capital reserves as of 31 December 2009

The Company was incorporated on 15
February 2010 and the Reorganisation
was not completed prior to 31 December
2009. For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the capital reserve
in the consolidated financial statements
represented the paid-in capital of subsidiaries
of the Company, after eliminating intra-group
investments.

Capital reserve as of 31 December 2010

Capital reserve as of 31 December 2010
represented the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the consideration for the
acquisitions upon the Reorganisation as detailed
in Note 1.1; and (ii) the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of the direct owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Statutory reserves

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is
required to allocate 10% of the companies’
net profit to the statutory reserves fund until
such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserves fund
can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase its registered capital, provided that
such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of its registered capital. As at 31 December
2010, retained earnings comprised statutory
reserves fund amounting to HK$26,529,000
(2009: HK$26,529,000).

23 A&

(a) =&EE

()

(i)

BX@EE
RZEFEFNF+ZH
= —HHELEE
ARNBIR_ZE—ZFF_A
THRAEFEMKYZ  BRZ
EENF+-_A=1+—H
AIARTEARELND - RS
BWERME  REE %
WMENKE RREBIRLE
HEBAQRRERER
KABNBRARINEHE
A& o

RZEFE-—FF+ZH
=t —HBELEE

WRZZE—-—ZTF+ A
=T+ —HWEXRREFEET
FIMERZRE : (1)REAR
RHWEREEE(FE
RMisE1.1) 5 R (i) RAF]
ERER M B RRIMR
AR REERE -

EERE

/NS DA Sl L NEE NS
B RBIHFE10% D
REZLZTHE2 BZE
ZRESEZHEGME
KHS50% - KEBE R
&R EAERESTA
O BH R 5T B 18 g
HAaMER HZHEE
CREERFREZME
R25%H)KF e R - F
—ZEF+=-_A=+—80"
RBEANBIEEEHES
26,529,000/ L( — T F
FLEE + 26,529,000/ 7T) °
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23 RESERVES (continued) 23 f#E®)
(b) Company (b) AAF)

Share Accumulated

premium Loss Total
g vy ZEHEE a5t
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
THET FHET THET
Balance as at 15 February RZ-Z—ZF A
2010 (date of +EH B (MR
incorporation) HE) B &ek - - =
Loss for the period HREE - (8,397) (8,397)
Allotment of share pursuant R =48 A 2 A% 1D
to the Reorganisation (BFEET.1) 503,103 - 503,103
(Note 1.1)
Share issued under the RIBERNMEETZ
capitalization issue BBITRGN
(Note 22(b)(i)) (BFEE 22(b)(0)) (49,000) - (49,000)
Shares issued pursuant RIERIRBEE
to the Global Offering BIRG
(Note 22(b)ii)) (B &E 22(b)(i)) 675,101 - 675,101
1129204 8397) 1,120,807
Balance at RZZE—LF+=H
31 December 2010 =+— AR 1,129,204 (8,397) 1,120,807
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24 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 24 ENERER - HEARIER
ACCRUALS FESTFIR
Company
As at
Group 31 December
As at 31 December AAFE]
rEHE R+=A
R+=—B=+—H =+—H
2010 2009 2010
—E-BF _—TThF ZEB-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT FHET
Trade payables (Note (a)) JETBRE SR (M (a)) 143,033 86,912 -
Other payables and accruals Hfth FE A FRIE K2
JEFT IR
Receipt in advance from RS F 5K IE
customers 17,804 10,138 -
Other tax charge payables H A ER TR 6,624 5,455 -
Accrued expenses JEFTFIZ 16,272 20,826 4,378
Others HAit 15,035 4,903 -
55,735 41,322 4,378
198,768 128,234 4,378
Note (a): The ageing analysis of trade payables was as it (a) : FEISBRFRABRIR DATZAT -
follows:

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—H
2010 2009
—E-TF —ZTThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT AT
Up to 90 days 90 B 134,663 79,190
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 6,434 2,379
181 to 365 days 181 HZ365H 329 103
Over 365 days 365 HUA E 1,607 5,240
143,033 86,912
The average credit period granted by the Group’s AEEEHERR THEHEER

suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. NFZEZE180H o
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25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(i)

(ii)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation
of the related benefits through future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 December 2010, the Group
had unrecognised tax losses of HK$25,862,000
(2009: HK$9,173,000), to carry forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses have not
been recognised due to uncertainty of their future
recoverability. The tax losses will expire according
to the prevailing tax laws and regulations in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Cai Shui [2008] Circular 1, which was jointly
issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation, took effect on 22
February 2008. Under the circular, dividends
declared by foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs")
to foreign investors out of their cumulative retained
earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall be exempt
from withholding income tax. For dividends
declared out of profit earned after 1 January 2008,
withholding income tax will be levied on the foreign
investor at a tax rate of 10% unless the foreign
investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax
treaty with the PRC that provides for a different
withholding tax arrangement.

The directors of the Company regards the Group
does not expect to pay out dividends arising from
FIEs profit earned after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, there was deferred
income tax liabilities of HK$14,994,000 (2009:
HK$8,527,000) that have not been recognised as at
31 December 2010, for the withholding income tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
the subsidiaries of the Group.

25 ELEFEH

(i)

EEFTEREET R EIEEF
mﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂa&ﬁﬁmmﬂ

ﬁ%po\ T T$+ H
=+—H AEENRERH
JE §518 /5 25,862,000 7T ( =
$$h¢ 9,173,000 7T)
A] 4 88 DK 85 B 18 FE SR B UK
A mFE%WT@WﬁTﬁ
E n%%ﬁlﬁ}gﬂﬁﬂi%ﬁﬁu
MIEEEEREESE w%m
E.% HTE‘]/%@/%%% /%

B R IR T 15 48 R B & 32
B BF 1 [2008] 58 155 3B AR =
TEENF_AZ+-BER-
BIEZBH IEHRERE
([HNERE]BH-ZTLF
+ A=+ HHZRAREE
M gIIMEEETIRAIIR BN
MNEMMENMEH B=F
2)\$ A—BE8NRANPE
EEIBLE - #1E 10% M B R &
IMEE B BURTEREH
BrIESNEIIR B B AL A &)
EREE B BT B RS
HETRMFEMRLHE -

AAREERBAEERBHR
AFERARRTEHINETER
TR NF-A—BZENR
FE At RZE—FF
+-—A=1+—H WERAKE
(5] Ff B8 /2 ) A AR B 3R & 1) iy A]
BEZE S R TE B RE SRR T P
SR B 1E14,994,000/8 T (=
TT AL ¢ 8,527,000/87T) ©
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26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to
cash generated from operations

26 EERBHERE
(a) BRATEBATGFIEREE TG
REnHik

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—BHLEE

2010 2009
—E-BF —ITTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx TAT
Profit before income tax B P 4525 Bl A 172,508 100,083
Adjustment for: FEE -
Interest income (Note 5) FEUWA (FFEES) (928) (271)
Finance costs (Note 10) AR (FiI5E10) - 429
Depreciation of property,  #1% - HE K&
plant and equipment REIE
(Note 7) (M5E7) 2,608 1,918
Amortisation of leasehold A& £ i B 4
land (Note 7) (FFEE7) 5 5
Loss on disposal of HEWE - BE
property, plant and HERERE
equipment (Note 7) (MF5E7) 84 6
Provision for impairment FEW B ORI E
of trade receivables & (fisE19)
(Note 19) 374 422
174,651 102,592
Changes in working capital: & &R H) -
Trade and bills receivables, [ Uk BR 30 & & Uk
deposits and other B mek
receivables H fth fE 5 IR (54,542) 60,885
Inventories 75 (37,962) (8,368)
Amount due to/(from) FEf /(M) BAES 5 308 - (11,748)
related parties
Trade payables, other FERTBRFR ~ BT
payables and accruals AR R I ST FRIE 58,089 12,188
Cash generated from KEFERS
operations 140,236 155,549
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26 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
(continued)
(b) In the consolidated cash flow statements,
proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment comprise:

26 EERBHNERE (®)

(b) EHRERERT  HEY
¥ BERRBHHRERE
B

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

Net book amount (Note 15) BREFE (MisE15)

Loss on sale of property, LEWE  BEX
plant and equipment HERER
(Note 7) (F$5E7)

Proceeds from sale of HEME  BE K
property, plant and HERFTEIE

equipment

27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2009 and 2010, the Group had no
contingent liabilities.

28 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group leases certain of its office premises under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
various terms and renewal rights. As at 31 December
2010, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as
follows:

2010 2009
—®-®F —TTAS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHT
317 6

(84) ®)

233 -

27 HREE
RZBEENEFER-_FT—ZFTF+_A
=t—8 AEBEIERREE -

28 WEMHEERR
AEERBENABEHESHE W Z
HEEETHASM - HERHEE
RBHEER NR_T-TF+_
A=+—8  NEERETAHEE
RETHERARRKIEHE 2 R B
W

As at 31 December

Not later than one year TEBE—F
Later than one year and fEim—F1E
not later than five years BB A F

R+=—BA=+—H
2010 2009
—B-2F —ZETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET
4,452 2,319
2,253 1,361
6,705 3,680
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has,
directly or indirectly, the ability to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions.

The Directors of the Company are of the view that
the following companies were related parties that had
transactions or balances with the Group during the year:

(a)

(b)

Transactions with related parties during the
year

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 9(b), the following transactions with a related
party was undertaken by the Group with this related
party during the year.

RESTEok)-¥NG]
EREHREREER
pmARLR ([2EE])
xS

Rental fees paid to Beijing Hi
Sunsray Information Technology
Limited (“Sunsray”),
a subsidiary of Hi Sun

The directors of the Company have confirmed that
the related party transactions set out in the above
table will continue. Rental paid to Sunsray were
charged at a fixed monthly fee subject to the terms
mutually agreed by Sunsray.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
above related party transactions were carried out in
the normal course of business and at terms mutually
negotiated between the Group and Sunsray.

Key management compensation
Details of key management compensation during the
year have been disclosed in Note 9.

29 EBAERS

M—% AT BN EE R EEIET
Hh AT EHMATER I R
MERRBHEEBMERNTE - 8
ZATHERBEZZEMALTNE
B

KRBESERE  WTFARIANRE
FEERNEEHITIR I NEERD
REE 7

(a) RAFEEBABLTNRZ

FRE (o) PRI BB RV BARE T R 5
S NAIERRBERE BVRR FI AR
RE BN A FE HE LB

e

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=+-HLEE

2010 2009

i S 43 “TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
489 329

AAREFEER LR
T RS RREETT - MER
liﬁmﬁ\iﬂﬁlmﬁﬁ
WE - UREEEBEBERE
FMERFKAY AR o

RRARERERE - LT
5N EBRFBREPIRR
ANEEEEBRREE HERGK
LT ©

(b) TEEEEME
TEEEERANFEMENF
TEAREEDOPIFEQ ©
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aw ws s
=

-
. .

\

30 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 30 HFERESEE
Save as the exercise of the Over-allotment Option BBt 3T 22(c) IR B8 < 1T {E BB RE AL AR
as disclosed in note 22(c), no other event took place YN ImEERA _E—TFE+
subsequent to 31 December 2010. A=+—H&%Ax -
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FHMBHE
A summary of the published consolidated results and of the R ERERMERRRIZERBRE
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last MO BENAEERAEMNERREREE R
four financial years, as extracted from the audited financial MGEXENGAEEHBBEHMEN
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set as below: o

2010 2009 2008 2007

—EB-BF —TTHhE Z—TENEFE —TTLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FET FET

Results E4
Revenue R 723,610 492,942 493,589 323,143
Gross profit EF 291,870 192,860 190,890 112,520
Operating profit & A 172,508 100,512 117,601 70,590
Profit for the year attributable ARAVERFA A

to the equity shareholders JE A6 A A

of the Company 145,423 84,551 106,062 64,215
Financial position BN
Assets and liabilities BENEBE

Total assets BEE 1,505,360 565,707 490,149 357,639

Total liabilities ®EE 218,249 142,646 151,639 134,441
Capital and reserves BERR B

Total equity mEE 1,287,111 423,061 338,510 223,198
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